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Consolidated Balance Sheets

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S. dollars (Note 2)

As at March 31, 2023 2024 2024

Assets
Cash and due from banks  � ¥� 1,833,043 ¥� 1,844,728 $�12,183,664
Trading account securities  � 541 268 1,775
Money held in trust  � 9,854 12,251 80,913
Securities  � 2,617,250 2,290,971 15,130,914
Loans and bills discounted  � 5,991,297 6,406,055 42,309,331
Foreign exchanges  � 10,045 8,445 55,780
Lease receivables and investment assets  � 60,554 63,506 419,437  
Other assets  � 74,120 109,746 724,828
Property and equipment  � 65,013 64,772 427,797
Intangible assets  � 8,053 8,162 53,913
Net defined benefit asset  � 16,963 40,728 268,994
Deferred tax assets  � 13,003 1,335 8,822
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees  � 8,527 8,609 56,861
Allowance for loan losses  � (45,967) (41,366) (273,208)

Total assets  � ¥�10,662,300 ¥�10,818,218 $�71,449,826

Liabilities
Deposits  � ¥� 8,244,257 ¥� 8,477,662 $�55,991,427
Call money and bills sold  � 28,708 40,880 270,000
Payables under repurchase agreements  � 86,565 136,841 903,779
Payables under securities lending transactions  � 723,449 283,947 1,875,356
Borrowed money  � 926,993 1,122,729 7,415,157
Foreign exchanges  � 338 341 2,257
Bonds payable  � 50,000 50,000 330,229
Borrowed money from trust account  � 12,988 13,575 89,660
Other liabilities  � 55,774 95,309 629,478
Provision for directors’ bonuses  � 56 61 408
Net defined benefit liability  � 358 342 2,258
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits  � 167 140 930
Provision for reimbursement of deposits  � 264 154 1,017
Provision for contingent loss  � 926 915 6,049
Reserves under special laws  � 0 0 6
Deferred tax liabilities  � — 6,708 44,305
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation  � 7,112 6,902 45,585
Acceptances and guarantees  � 8,527 8,609 56,861

Total liabilities  � 10,146,489 10,245,122 67,664,768

Net assets
Capital stock  � 48,652 48,652 321,327
Capital surplus  � 29,581 29,587 195,415
Retained earnings  � 429,438 452,960 2,991,614
Treasury shares  � (9,233) (17,146) (113,246)
Total shareholders’ equity  � 498,439 514,053 3,395,110
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities  � (2,920) 23,617 155,983
Deferred gains or losses on hedges  � 250 942 6,221
Revaluation reserve for land  � 13,022 12,593 83,174
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  � 7,018 21,889 144,568
Total accumulated other comprehensive income  � 17,370 59,041 389,947

Total net assets  � 515,810 573,095 3,785,057
Total liabilities and net assets  � ¥�10,662,300 ¥�10,818,218 $�71,449,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Millions of yen 
Thousands of

U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Years ended March 31, 2023 2024 2024

Income
Interest income:

Interest on loans and discounts � ¥� 58,544 ¥� 68,882 $� 454,941
Interest and dividends on securities � 26,381 35,820 236,581
Other interest income � 2,150 1,104 7,294

Trust fees � 36 37 248
Fees and commissions � 22,763 28,239 186,509
Other ordinary income � 37,385 33,504 221,281
Other income � 30,926 32,977 217,803

Total income � 178,187 200,566 1,324,660

Expenses
Interest expenses:

Interest on deposits� 2,769 5,309 35,065
Interest on call money and borrowing � 2,259 4,550 30,053
Other interest expenses � 10,592 29,919 197,606

Fees and commissions payments � 8,357 9,129 60,299
Other ordinary expenses � 59,603 53,003 350,067
General and administrative expenses � 51,549 51,547 340,448
Other expenses � 4,154 4,123 27,236

Total expenses � 139,286 157,584 1,040,777
Profit before income taxes � 38,901 42,982 283,883
Income taxes:

Current � 8,426 11,850 78,268
Deferred � 2,542 6 41

Profit � 27,933 31,125 205,573
Profit attributable to owners of parent � ¥� 27,933 ¥� 31,125 $� 205,573

Yen U.S. dollars

Per share amounts
Profit – primary � ¥� 68.19 ¥� 78.43 $� 0.51

Diluted earnings per share of common stock for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 are omitted as there are no dilutive shares.

Consolidated Statements of Income

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 2) 

Years ended March 31, 2023 2024 2024

Profit ¥� 27,933 ¥31,125 $205,573
Other comprehensive income

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities � (36,479) 25,818 170,522
Deferred gains or losses on hedges � 388 691 4,564
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans � 2,601 14,870 98,213
Share of other comprehensive income of entities accounted for by the  
equity method � 179 719 4,751

Total other comprehensive income � (33,310) 42,099 278,052
Comprehensive income (5,377) 73,225 483,626

(Details)
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent � ¥� (5,377) ¥73,225 $483,626

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Millions of yen

Shareholders’ equity

Capital stock Capital  
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury  
shares

Total shareholders’ 
equity

Balance as of March 31, 2022 � ¥48,652 ¥29,581 ¥407,300 ¥(7,352) ¥478,181

Changes of items during the year �

Dividends of surplus � — — (6,161) — (6,161)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — 27,933 — 27,933

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — (2,000) (2,000)

Disposal of treasury shares � — — (25) 119 94

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — 393 — 393

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � — — — — —

Total changes of items during the year � — — 22,138 (1,880) 20,257

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � ¥48,652 ¥29,581 ¥429,438 ¥(9,233) ¥498,439

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Valuation 
difference on 

available- 
for-sale  

securities

Deferred  
gains or  
losses on  
hedges

Revaluation  
reserve for  

land

Remeasure- 
ments of  

defined benefit 
plans

Total  
accumulated  

other 
comprehensive 

income
Total net 

assets

Balance as of March 31, 2022 � ¥� 33,379 ¥(137) ¥13,415 ¥4,417 ¥�51,074 ¥529,256

Changes of items during the year �

Dividends of surplus � — — — — — (6,161)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — — — — 27,933

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — — — (2,000)

Disposal of treasury shares � — — — — — 94

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — — — — 393

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � (36,300) 388 (393) 2,601 (33,703) (33,703)

Total changes of items during the year � (36,300) 388 (393) 2,601 (33,703) (13,445)

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � ¥� (2,920) ¥ 250 ¥13,022 ¥7,018 ¥�17,370 ¥515,810
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Millions of yen

Shareholders’ equity

Capital stock Capital  
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury  
shares

Total shareholders’ 
equity

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � ¥48,652 ¥29,581 ¥429,438 ¥  (9,233) ¥498,439

Changes of items during the year �

Dividends of surplus � — — (8,033) — (8,033)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — 31,125 — 31,125

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — (8,001) (8,001)

Disposal of treasury shares � — 5 — 88 94

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — 428 — 428

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � — — — — —

Total changes of items during the year � — 5 23,521 (7,913) 15,614

Balance as of March 31, 2024 � ¥48,652 ¥29,587 ¥452,960 ¥(17,146) ¥514,053

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Valuation  
difference on 

available- 
for-sale  

securities

Deferred  
gains or  
losses on  
hedges

Revaluation  
reserve for  

land

Remeasure- 
ments of  

defined benefit 
plans

Total  
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income
Total net 

assets

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � ¥�(2,920) ¥250 ¥13,022 ¥  7,018 ¥17,370 ¥515,810

Changes of items during the year �

Dividends of surplus � — — — — — (8,033)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — — — — 31,125

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — — — (8,001)

Disposal of treasury shares � — — — — — 94

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — — — — 428

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � 26,538 691 (428) 14,870 41,670 41,670

Total changes of items during the year � 26,538 691 (428) 14,870 41,670 57,285

Balance as of March 31, 2024 � ¥23,617 ¥942 ¥12,593 ¥21,889 ¥59,041 ¥573,095
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Shareholders’ equity

Capital stock Capital  
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury  
shares

Total shareholders’ 
equity

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � $321,327 $195,376 $2,836,264 $  (60,982) $3,291,985

Changes of items during the year �  

Dividends of surplus � — — (53,057) — (53,057)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — 205,573 — 205,573

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — (52,848) (52,848)

Disposal of treasury shares � — 39 — 584 623

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — 2,833 — 2,833

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � — — — — —

Total changes of items during the year � — 39 155,349 (52,263) 103,124

Balance as of March 31, 2024 � $321,327 $195,415 $2,991,614 $(113,246) $3,395,110

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Valuation 
difference  on 

available- 
for-sale  

securities

Deferred  
gains or  
losses  

on hedges

Revaluation 
reserve for  

land

Remeasure- 
ments of  

defined benefit 
plans

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income
Total net 

assets

Balance as of March 31, 2023 � $(19,290) $1,657 $86,007 $  46,354 $114,727 $3,406,713

Changes of items during the year �

Dividends of surplus � — — — — — (53,057)

Profit attributable to owners of parent � — — — — — 205,573

Purchase of treasury shares � — — — — — (52,848)

Disposal of treasury shares � — — — — — 623

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land � — — — — — 2,833

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity � 175,273 4,564 (2,833) 98,213 275,219 275,219

Total changes of items during the year � 175,273 4,564 (2,833) 98,213 275,219 378,343

Balance as of March 31, 2024 � $155,983 $6,221 $83,174 $144,568 $389,947 $3,785,057
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Years ended March 31, 2023 2024 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes � ¥ � 38,901 ¥�  42,982 $�  283,883
Depreciation � 6,572 6,193 40,903
Impairment loss � 409 787 5,200
Share of loss (profit) of entities accounted by the equity method � (221) (141) (934)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan losses � (6,517) (4,601) (30,390)
Increase (decrease) in provision for directors' bonuses � (2) 4 32
Decrease (increase) in net defined benefit asset � (6,150) (23,764) (156,956)
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability � (4) (16) (107)
Increase (decrease) in provision for directors' retirement benefits � (36) (26) (173)
Increase (decrease) in provision for reimbursement of deposits � (103) (110) (726)
Increase (decrease) in provision for contingent loss � 25 (10) (69)
Interest and dividend income � (87,076) (105,807) (698,817)
Interest expenses � 15,620 39,779 262,725
Loss (gain) related to securities � 1,772 (5,719) (37,777)
Loss (gain) on money held in trust � 11 (0) (0)
Foreign exchange losses (gains) � (2,554) (1,505) (9,945)
Loss (gain) on disposal of non-current assets � (994) 18 122
Net decrease (increase) in trading account securities � 400 272 1,801
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted � (233,200) (414,758) (2,739,308)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits � 85,504 258,420 1,706,760
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificates of deposit � (9,838) (25,016) (165,221)
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings) � (573,802) 195,736 1,292,755
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding deposits placed with  
Bank of Japan) � 523 (11,136) (73,550)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans � 6,119 — —
Net increase (decrease) in call money � 36,623 12,171 80,389
Net increase (decrease) in payables under repurchase agreements � — 50,275 332,050
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions � (9,545) (439,502) (2,902,729)
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchanges - assets � 24,199 1,599 10,566
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchanges - liabilities � (196) 3 22
Net decrease (increase) in lease receivables and investment assets � (363) (2,952) (19,500)
Net increase(decrease) in borrowed money from trust account � 931 587 3,878
Interest and dividend received � 90,335 108,367 715,723
Interest paid � (14,451) (38,513) (254,365)
Other - net � (13,296) (28,661) (189,294)
Subtotal � (650,404) (385,043) (2,543,053)
Income taxes paid � (5,761) (9,480) (62,613)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities � (656,166) (394,524) (2,605,667)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of securities � (823,174) (830,733) (5,486,648)
Proceeds from sales of securities � 519,392 1,065,544 7,037,474
Proceeds from redemption of securities � 151,062 185,624 1,225,975
Increase in money held in trust � (1,600) (2,400) (15,851)
Decrease in money held in trust � 14 2 19
Purchases of property and equipment � (3,775) (4,347) (28,713)
Purchases of intangible assets � (2,031) (2,941) (19,428)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment � 2,356 252 1,670
Proceeds from business transfer � 4,437 — —

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities � (153,319) 411,002 2,714,498
Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of subordinated bonds � 10,000 10,000 66,045
Redemption of subordinated bonds � (10,000) (10,000) (66,045)
Cash dividends paid � (6,159) (8,021) (52,980)
Purchases of treasury shares � (2,000) (8,001) (52,848)
Proceeds from sales of treasury shares � 94 94 623

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities � (8,066) (15,929) (105,205)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents � (817,552) 548 3,625
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year � 2,647,506 1,829,954 12,086,085
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year � ¥ 1,829,954 ¥�1,830,503 $�12,089,711

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The 
Gunma Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) and its consolidated 
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have been prepared from the 
accounts maintained by the Bank in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in the Banking Law, the Financial 
Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan and other applicable 
rules and regulations and in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in 
certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements 
of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements include information which is not required under 
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is 
presented herein as additional information.

Certain items have been reclassified from the original 
consolidated financial statements filed with the Prime 
Minister as required by the Financial Instruments and 
Exchange Act for the convenience of readers outside Japan. 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to comply 
with the current year presentation.

b. Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include 
the accounts of the Bank and its significant subsidiaries. The 
number of consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2024 is 
6.

The remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries have been 
excluded from the scope of consolidation because, judging 
from their assets, ordinary profit, net income or loss 
(amounts corresponding to the Bank’s equity interest), 
retained earnings (amounts corresponding to the Bank’s 
equity interest) and accumulated other comprehensive 
income (amounts corresponding to the Bank’s equity 
interest), they do not have a material effect on the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

As of March 31, 2024, the Bank has 2 unconsolidated 
subsidiaries, which are accounted by the equity method, and 
1 affiliate, which is accounted by the equity method.

In reference to the consolidated subsidiaries’ closing dates, 
six companies close accounts at the end of March.

c. Trading Account Securities
Trading securities purchased for trading purpose are stated at 
market value at the fiscal year end with its related cost of 
sales being determined mainly by the moving average 
method.

d. Securities
Securities are classified into four categories: trading, held-to- 
maturity bonds, equity of unconsolidated subsidiaries and 
affiliates or securities available for sale. Trading securities are 
carried at market value and held-to-maturity bonds are 
carried at amortized cost. Equity of unconsolidated 
subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost and accounted by 
the equity method, respectively. Marketable securities 
classified as securities available for sale are carried at market 
value with changes in unrealized holding gain or loss, net of 
the applicable income taxes, recorded as a component of net 
assets.

Stocks and others without a quoted market price are stated 
at acquisition cost and determined by the moving average 
method.

Securities comprising the trust asset in money held in trust 
which is solely managed primarily for the purpose of 
securities operations are stated at market value.

Regarding foreign currency-denominated available-for-sale 
debt securities, translation differences arising from changes 
fair value are treated as valuation differences, and the 
remainder is treated as foreign exchange gains or losses.

e. Derivatives
Derivatives are stated at market value.

f. Non-current assets
(1) Property and equipment
Depreciation of Property and equipment of the Bank are 
computed by the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives principally applied are as follows. 

Buildings	 6 to 50 years
Equipment and furniture	 3 to 20 years

Depreciation of Property and equipment of the consolidated 
subsidiaries are principally computed by the straight line 
method based on the estimated useful lives of the respective 
assets.

(2) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are depreciated using the straight line 
method. Software used internally is depreciated over its 
estimated useful life (mainly five years).

(3) Leased assets
Leased assets in “Property and equipment” subject to finance 
lease transactions other than those under which the title of 
the leased equipment is transferred to the lessee are 
depreciated using the straight line method assuming that the 
lease period is equal to the useful life. If a guarantee for 
residual value is prescribed by the lease contract, the residual 
value is equal to such guaranteed residual value; otherwise, 
the residual value is zero.

g. Foreign Currency Translation
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates prevailing 
at the balance sheet date.

h. Allowance for loan losses
An allowance for loan losses is provided in accordance with 
the internal guidelines regarding write-offs and allowance for 
loan losses.
1) �For loans to debtors that are legally bankrupt under the 

Bankruptcy Law, Special Liquidation under the 
Commercial Code or other similar laws, and to debtors 
that are effectively in similar conditions, the allowance is 
provided at the amount of loan balance less the amount 
recoverable from the disposal of collateral and/or 
guarantees.

2) �For loans to debtors that are not yet legally or substantially 
bankrupt but are likely to go bankrupt (the “potentially 
bankrupt debtors”), the allowance is provided at the 
amount deemed necessary against the credit balance less 
the amount recoverable from the disposal of collateral 
and/or guarantees.(the “uncovered amount”).
A �For loans to large loan balance debtors with credit 

exceeding a certain amount, the allowance is provided 
at the amount calculated by the method whereby the 
amount of the allowance is set at the uncovered amount 
less the amount reasonably estimated recoverable from 
the cash flows (“cash flow deduction method”).

B �For loans to other debtors, the allowance is provided at 
the amount of losses expected to be incurred from the 
uncovered amount over the next three years. The 
amount of expected losses is determined by calculating  
the long-term average of the ratio of loan losses 
observed over three years in the past, with the addition 
of the adjustment based on the recent loan-loss ratio 
and other necessary adjustments. 

3) �For loans to debtors requiring careful management in the 
future, such as those with restructured loans (the “debtors                
requiring caution”), the allowance is provided at the 
amount deemed necessary against the loan balance.
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A �For loans to large loan balance debtors with credit 
exceeding a certain amount, the allowance is provided at 
the amount calculated by the method whereby the 
amount of the allowance is set at the difference between 
the sum of the reasonably estimated cash flows, 
discounted by the original contractual interest rate and 
the book value of the loan (the “DCF method”).

B �For loans to other debtors, the allowance is provided at 
the amount of losses expected to be incurred over the 
next three years. The amount of expected loss is 
determined by calculating the long-term average of the 
ratio of loan losses observed over three years in the past, 
with the addition of the adjustment based on the recent 
loan-loss ratio and other necessary adjustments.

4) �For loans to debtors other than those in 1) to 3) above, 
the allowance is provided at the amount of losses expected 
to be incurred over the next year. The amount of expected 
loss is determined by calculating the long-term average of 
the ratio of loan losses observed over one year in the past, 
with the addition of the adjustment based on the recent 
loan-loss ratio and other necessary adjustments.

(Note) 
Classification for the ratio of expected loss
The ratio of expected loss is calculated based on the ratio of 
loan losses, which is based on actual loan losses over a set 
period of time, and is classified into the following four 
categories: one category for normal debtors, two categories as 
described below for debtors requiring caution, and one 
category for potentially bankrupt debtors.
• The debtors requiring caution include those for whom all 
or part of the loans are substandard loans (loans past due for 
3 months or more, or restructured loans) (the “substandard 
debtors”) as well as those who modified contractual terms of 
loans, but are not considered substandard debtors because 
their loans are not regarded as restructured loans due to 
business improvement plans, etc.
• Loans to other debtors requiring caution

All credit is subject to self-assessment of assets by 
marketing related departments in accordance with the 
internal guidelines for the self-assessment of assets, and the 
results of the self- assessment are audited by the department 
in charge of asset auditing that is independent of the 
marketing-related departments.

Consolidated subsidiaries record a general reserve for loan 
losses by applying the historical loan-loss ratio observed over 
specific periods, and the specific reserve for certain loans at 
the estimated uncollectible amount based on an assessment 
of each debtor’s ability to repay loans.

i. Provision for directors’ bonuses
A provision is provided for the payments of bonuses to 
directors and the Board of Corporate Auditors Members at 
the amount of the estimated bonus payments corresponding 
to the end of the fiscal year.

j. Accounting method for retirement benefits
In calculating retirement benefit obligation, the Bank uses 
the benefit formula basis for the purpose of attributing 
expected retirement benefit payment to the period up to the 
end of the fiscal year. In addition, the accounting method for 
actuarial gain and loss is as follows:

Actuarial gain and loss
Actuarial gain and loss are amortized from the year 

following the occurrence primarily by the straight line 
method over a fixed period (mainly 10 years) that is shorter 
than the average remaining service years of the eligible 
employees.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries calculate liability for 
retirement benefits and retirement benefit expenses by the 
simplified method, whereby retirement benefit obligation is 
recognized at the amount that would be paid if eligible 
employees retired at the end of the fiscal year.

k. Provision for directors’ retirement benefits
To prepare for the payment of retirement benefits to directors   
and the Board of Corporate Auditors Members, a reserve is 
provided at the amount deemed to have accrued at the end 
of the fiscal year (the estimated amount payable on the 
balance sheet date based on the bylaws) out of the estimated 
amount payable as retirement benefits to directors and the 
Board of Corporate Auditors Members.

l. Provision for reimbursement of deposits
A provision for reimbursement of deposits accounts is 
provided for the repayment of dormant deposits which are 
no longer recorded as liabilities, based on the estimated 
reimbursement losses that may be incurred should the 
deposits be withdrawn.

m. Provision for Contingent Loss
A provision for contingent loss is provided for the payment 
of charges related to the responsibility-sharing system to 
Credit Guarantee Corporations at the amount expected to be 
paid based on the past payment experience.

n. Reserves under Special Laws
Reserves under the special laws represents a reserve for 
financial products transaction liabilities and is provided for 
compensation for losses from securities-related accidents in 
the amount computed in accordance with Article 46-5 of the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and Article 175 of 
the related cabinet ordinance.

o. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on 
the differences between financial reporting and the tax basis 
of the assets and liabilities and are measured using the 
enacted tax rates and laws which will be in effect when the 
differences are expected to be reversed.

p. Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share was computed based on the profit 
available for distribution to shareholders and the number of 
shares of common stock outstanding during the fiscal year.

q. Hedge Accounting
Hedge Accounting for Interest Rate Risks
The Bank adopted the “Accounting and Auditing Treatment 
of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the 
Banking Industry” (Practical Guidance No.24 by the Japanese 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA) Industry- 
specific Special Committee, March 17, 2022;“Industry- 
specific Special Committee Practical Guidance No.24”). 

Under the Industry-specific Special Committee Practical 
Guidance No.24, the Bank applies the deferred method of 
hedge accounting for qualifying derivative instruments to 
mitigate the interest rate risks arising from various financial 
assets and liabilities.

Hedge effectiveness is assessed for each designated group 
of hedged items (such as deposits) and the corresponding 
group of hedging instruments (such as interest rate swaps). 
Both of the hedged items and hedging instruments are 
grouped based on their durations and compared for the 
testing of effectiveness.

In addition to the above, the Bank applies exceptional 
treatment for certain interest swap contracts that meet the 
criteria for the exceptional treatment, under which eligible 
interest rate swap contracts are accounted for on an accrual 
basis.

Hedge Accounting for Foreign Exchange Risks
For foreign exchange risks arising from financial assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Bank 
adopted the “Accounting and Auditing Treatment of 
Accounting for Foreign Currency Denominated Transactions, 
etc. in the Banking Industry” (Practical Guidance No.25 by 
the JICPA Industry-specific Special Committee, October 8, 
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2020;“Industry-specific Special Committee Practical 
Guidance No.25”). Under the Industry-specific Special 
Committee Practical Guidance No.25, the Bank applies the 
deferred method of hedge accounting.

The Bank enters into currency-swaps and foreign exchange 
swaps to mitigate the foreign exchange risks arising from 
financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies and assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on 
an ongoing basis, whether these derivatives are highly 
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items 
(financial assets and liabilities). Hedge effectiveness is 
assessed by ensuring that the foreign currency position of the 
hedging instruments that are designated to hedge foreign 
exchange risk of the foreign currency-denominated 
receivables and payables exceeds that of the hedged foreign 
currency-denominated receivables and payables.

In addition, for available-for-sale securities (except for 
bonds) denominated in foreign currencies, the Bank applies 
the fair value hedge accounting for a portfolio hedge on the 
conditions that the issues of foreign currency denominated 
securities are designated as hedged items in advance and that 
the amount of foreign currency payables of spot and forward 
foreign exchange contracts exceeds the amount of acquisition 
cost of the hedged items denominated in foreign currencies.

r. Recognition for Income and Expenses
Income and expenses associated with finance lease 
transactions are recognized when lease fees are receivable 
and payable.

s. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of 
cash flows consist of cash and deposit with the Bank of Japan 
which are included in “Cash and due from banks” on the 
consolidated balance sheets.

(Significant accounting estimates)
Of the items for which amounts based on accounting 
estimates were recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, the 
following items may have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2025.

Allowance for loan losses
(1) �Amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements 

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.

Allowance for loan losses 
as of March 31, 2023

¥45,967 million 

Allowance for loan losses 
as of March 31, 2024

¥41,366 million 
U.S.$273,208 thousand

(2) �Information on the details of significant accounting 
estimates for items identified

1) Calculation method
�The calculation method for allowance for loan losses is 
presented in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies h. 

2) Major assumptions
�Major assumption is the “outlook for debtors’ future 
business performance used to determine the debtor 
classification.” The “outlook for debtors’ future business 
performance used to determine the debtor classification” 
is established through the individual evaluation of each 
debtor’s business characteristics, financial condition, cash 
flow, and earning generating ability, among other factors. 
In addition, for large loan balance debtors, whose 
substantial deterioration in business performance will 
increase the uncertainty about the Bank’s financial results, 
future cash flows are individually estimated using the DCF 
method or the cash flow deduction method, and 
allowance for loan losses is recognized. Among them, 

Reasonable estimates of future cash flows are used in the 
DCF method and the cash flow deduction method.
Reasonable estimates of future cash flows:
•�The estimated amount recoverable in case of a radical 
and feasible business improvement plan or the like and 
this amount can be reasonably estimated

•�The estimated amount recoverable with reference to 
factors such as past repayments

3) �Impact on the consolidated financial statements for the 
next fiscal year ending March 31, 2025.
�If the assumptions used for calculating the original 
estimates change due to factors such as changes in the 
business performance of individual debtors, then this may 
have a significant impact on allowance for loan losses in 
the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2025.
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2.  Yen and U.S. Dollar Amounts

The Bank maintains its accounting records in yen. The yen 
amounts included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements are stated in millions of yen, truncating 
amounts of less than one million yen. Therefore, the totals or 
subtotals presented in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements may not always add up to the sum of the 
respective account balances. “—” is used to denote nil and 
“0” is used to denote rounding down to zero.

Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the 
convenience of the reader. The rate of ¥151.41 = U.S.$1.00, 
the approximate exchange rate prevailing on March 31, 2024, 
has been used. The inclusion of such amounts is not 
intended to imply that yen have been or could be readily 
converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars at that or any 
other rate.

3.  Loans and Bills Discounted

(1) Loans based on the Banking Act and the Act on Emergency Measures for the Revitalization of the Financial Functions are as follows. 
Loans refer to the following items listed on the consolidated balance sheets: corporate bonds shown under “Securities” (limited to bonds 
for which all or part of the redemption of principal and the payment of interest are guaranteed, and the issuance of the corporate bond 
takes place via private offering of the securities in accordance with Article 2, Paragraph 3 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act); 
loans and bills discounted; foreign exchanges; items recorded in each account under “Other assets” such as accrued interest, suspense 
payments and customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees; available-for-sale securities indicated in the notes in case of  loan of 
securities (limited to those under a loan-for-use or lease agreement).

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2023 2024 2024
Loans to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt debtors� ¥  25,504 ¥  29,228 $193,043
Loans with collection risk� 41,706 36,684 242,284
Loans past due for 3 months or more� 3,645 6,385 42,170
Restructured loans� 45,122 35,778 236,300
Total� ¥115,979 ¥108,076 $713,799

Loans to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt debtors refer 
to loans held by debtors who have fallen into bankruptcy 
due to having initiated bankruptcy procedures, 
reorganization procedures, or filed applications to begin 
rehabilitation procedures, and other similar loans.

Loans with collection risk refer to loans that are not 
classified as Loans to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt 
debtors and in which the debtor has not yet fallen into 
bankruptcy, but their financial situation and business 
performance have worsened such that there is a high risk 
that the principal will not be redeemed, and interest will 
not be received according to contractual terms of loan.

Loans past due for 3 months or more refer to loans and 
bills discounted that are not classified as either loans to 
bankrupt and substantially bankrupt debtors or Loans with 
collection risk, and for which the repayment of principal or 
interest has been delayed by three months or more from the 
day after the agreed-upon payment date.

Restructured loans refer to loans and bills discounted that 
are not classified as loans to bankrupt and substantially 
bankrupt debtors, loans with collection risk, or loans past 
due for 3 months or more, and for which the terms of the 
loan have been restructured to the benefit of the debtor with 
the goal of reorganizing the debtor’s management or 
supporting the debtor by means such as the reduction or 
waiving of interest, the deferment of interest payments, the 
deferment of principal repayment, and debt forgiveness.

The loan amounts above show the amounts before the 
deduction of the allowance for loan losses.

(2) Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions 
in accordance with Industry-specific Special Committee 
Practical Guidance No.24. The Bank has rights to sell or 
pledge bank acceptances bought, commercial bills 
discounted, documentary bills and foreign exchange bought 
without restrictions. Their total face value as of March 31, 
2023 and 2024 were ¥23,195 million and ¥20,553 million 
(U.S.$135,747 thousand), respectively.

4.  Loan Commitments

Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitments are 
contracts that require the Bank to extend credit to customers 
up to the prescribed limits in response to customers’ 
application of loan as long as there is no violation of any 
condition in the contracts. The unused amount relating to 
these contracts within the limits was ¥1,348,997 million, 
¥1,350,855 million (U.S.$8,921,836 thousand), respectively 
at March 31, 2023 and 2024. ¥1,275,270 million, ¥1,260,473 
million (U.S. $8,324,902 thousand), respectively, at March 
31, 2023 and 2024 out of these unused balances were for the 
contracts of which original contractual term are one year or 
less, or unconditionally cancelable at any time.

Since many of these commitments expire without being 
drawn down, the unused amount does not necessarily 
represent a future cash requirement. Most of these contracts 
have conditions that the Bank can refuse customers’ loan 
application or decrease the contract limits with proper 
reasons (e.g., changes in financial situation, deterioration in 
customers’ creditworthiness). At the inception of contracts, 
the Bank obtains real estate, securities, etc. as collateral if 
considered to be necessary. Subsequently, the Bank performs 
periodic review of the customers’ business results based on 
internal rules, and takes necessary measures to reconsider 
conditions in contracts and/or require additional collateral 
and guarantees.

5.  Financial Instruments

(1) The financial instruments and related disclosures
a. Policy for financial instruments
The Group provides mainly banking services and other 
financial services including leasing. The Bank engages in 
fund management including investment in securities and 
funding in the call market, in addition to the business of 
accepting deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit as 
well as provision of loans. With its financial assets and 
liabilities exposed to interest rate risk, the Bank adopts asset 
liability management (ALM) to avoid incurring unexpected 
loss due to fluctuations in interest rates. Thus, the Bank’s 
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derivative transactions are not only intended to provide 
solutions to customers’ financial needs, but also to conduct 
ALM within the Bank.

There are the Bank’s consolidated subsidiaries that engage 
in leasing business or securities business.

b. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial 
instruments
Financial assets held by the Group comprise mainly loans 
to clients, which are exposed to credit risk. The Group’s 
financial assets also include securities such as stocks and 
bonds, which are exposed to credit risk of the issuing 
entities as well as the risk of market price fluctuations.

Assets and liabilities in the forms of loans, bonds and 
deposits are exposed to interest rate risk, which is partially 
hedged by interest rate swap transactions. Likewise foreign 
currency denominated loans and bonds involve foreign 
currency exchange fluctuation risk, which is mitigated by 
making it a rule to match the currency of investment and 
financing, or hedged by the use of currency swap 
transactions.

Call money and borrowed money, etc. are exposed to 
cash flow risk, involving inability to settle payments on due 
dates as a result of the unavailability of market under 
certain circumstances.

The Bank conducts derivative transactions including 
interest rate swaps and currency-swaps in an effort to 
accommodate clients’ financial needs, and as part of the 
Bank’s ALM effort. Besides, the Bank engages in proprietary 
derivative trading with the purpose to earn short-term 
spread, subject to risk management including the setting of 
certain position limits and maximum allowable losses, in 
an effort to prevent losses in excess of certain threshold.

The Bank applies hedge accounting, The Bank confirms 
that for hedges of interest rate to which exceptional 
treatment of interest rate swap is applied, the conditions for 
exceptional treatment are met and that for hedges of the 
foreign currency exchange fluctuation risk, foreign currency 
position exceeds the hedged instruments.

c. Risk management for financial instruments
The Bank has formulated the Basic Policy of Risk 
Management and ancillary rules concerning risks, along 
with the following structure to enforce adequate risk 
management.

1) Credit risk management
The Bank has established its credit management structure 
based on the internal rules concerning credit risks, including 
the Credit Guideline and the Basic Rules for Credit Risk 
Management.

Provision of loans and other credit facilities involves 
credit risk management such as individual credit review, 
post-origination credit control including the utilization of 
Debtor Rating System and self assessment, handling of 
problem loans and monitoring of the credit concentration 
in particular sectors in loan portfolios.

Credit risks associated with securities investment and 
market transactions are managed by capturing fair value 
and credit rating.

Primary credit risk management tools such as credit rating 
system, self-assessment of the Bank’s asset, write-off /reserve 
provisioning, are developed and examined by Risk 
Management Department which is independent of the 
business promotion division and the screening division, 
and checked by Inspection & Audit Department, for the 
purpose of proper check and balance. Executive Committee 
and the Board of Directors are updated on the latest risk 
situation regularly and as appropriate.

2) Market risk management
Risk management structure is in place, based on the internal 
rules concerning market risks including the Basic Rules of 
Market Risk Management.

For market transactions, the department in charge of 
market transactions is structured in such a way that they 
check each other: the Treasury & Securities Department 
serves as the front office department in charge of 
transactions, whereas the Financial Markets & International 
Department serves as the middle-office and back-office 
department in charge of risk management and 
administrative processing.

In addition, the Bank establishes the risk tolerance and 
the risk management criteria, conducts monitoring, and 
reports the monitored information to the ALM & Profit 
Management Committee via the Risk Management 
Department.

The principal financial instruments that expose the Bank 
to market risk include loans, deposits, securities and 
derivative transactions. In order to monitor the degree of 
market risk exposure of these financial instruments and 
financial obligations, the Bank employs the VaR technique 
as a uniform indicator tool.

It applies the historical-simulation method to the 
computation of VaR. Its VaR model uses a 99.9% confidence 
level and a 5-years observation period, with various holding 
periods depending on the holding purposes.

The total amount of value at risk (VaR) for the Bank as of 
March 31, 2023 and 2024 was ¥130,825 million ¥166,996 
million (U.S. $ 1,102,942 thousand), respectively.

The Bank conducts back tests by comparing the VaR 
derived from its measuring model and actual gains or 
losses, in order to confirm that its measuring model 
captures the market risk with sufficient adequacy. It should 
be noted that the VaR represents the amount of market risk 
under the condition of a certain event probability which 
was statistically calculated based on historical market 
fluctuations; therefore the model may not be able to capture 
sufficiently the risk associated with financial instruments in 
market turmoil that exceeds historical levels of market 
fluctuations.

3) Liquidity risk management
Risk management structure is in place, based on the internal 
rules concerning liquidity risks including the Basic Rules of 
Liquidity Risk Management.

With respect to liquidity risk, the ALM & Profit 
Management Committee, which is convened each month, 
takes every precaution by identifying and analyzing the cash 
flow status, the balance between investing and funding, 
interest rate movements and other factors. With respect to 
cash flow risk, the Bank determines the department in 
charge of cash flow management, which rigorously manages 
cash flow periodically (e.g., daily, weekly, monthly) 
including its overseas bases.

We have also prepared a Contingency Plan to prepare 
against emergencies, and are taking every precaution 
including developing systems that enable us to respond 
appropriately to a wide range of scenarios.

d. Supplementary explanations on fair value of financial 
instruments
Fair value of financial instruments is measured based on 
certain assumptions, and the value might differ if different 
assumptions are used. In addition, the contract amount of 
the derivative transactions does not represent the market 
risk of the derivative transactions.
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(2) Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying value on the consolidated balance sheet and fair value of financial instruments as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 as well 
as the differences between these values are described below. 

Stocks and others without a quoted market price and Investments in limited partnerships are not included in the following table 
(see Note1). In addition, Cash and due form banks and Payables under securities lending transaction are omitted since these 
instruments are mainly settled in the short term and the fair values approximate the book values.

Millions of yen
2023

Carrying Value Market Value Differences
1. Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds � ¥� 1,814 ¥� 1,830 ¥� 15 
Available-for-sale � 2,582,596 2,582,596 —

2. Loans and bills discounted � 5,991,297 
Allowance for loan losses � (41,556)

5,949,741 5,970,135 20,394 
Total assets � ¥8,534,151 ¥8,554,562 ¥20,410 

1. Deposits � ¥8,044,837 ¥8,044,853 ¥� 15 
2. Negotiable certificates of deposit � 199,419 199,419 0 
3. Borrowed money � 926,993 926,993 —

Total liabilities � ¥9,171,250 ¥9,171,266 ¥� 15 

Derivative transaction
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied � ¥� (196) ¥� (196) ¥� —
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied � (5,462) (5,462) —

Total derivatives � ¥� (5,658) ¥� (5,658) ¥� —

Millions of yen
2024

Carrying Value Market Value Differences
1. Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds � ¥� 41,058 ¥� 41,652 ¥� 594 
Available-for-sale � 2,209,345 2,209,345  — 

2. Loans and bills discounted � 6,406,055 
Allowance for loan losses � (37,020)

6,369,035 6,386,129 17,094 
Total assets � ¥8,619,438 ¥8,637,127 ¥17,688 

1. Deposits � ¥8,303,258 ¥8,303,264 ¥� 6 
2. Negotiable certificates of deposit � 174,403 174,403  — 
3. Borrowed money � 1,122,729 1,122,729  — 

Total liabilities � ¥9,600,391 ¥9,600,397 ¥� 6 

Derivative transaction
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied � ¥� 214 ¥� 214 ¥�  — 
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied � (31,451) (31,451)  — 

Total derivatives � ¥� (31,236) ¥� (31,236) ¥� — 
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Carrying Value Market Value Differences
1. Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds � $� 271,175 $� 275,099 $� 3,923 
Available-for-sale � 14,591,803 14,591,803 —

2. Loans and bills discounted � 42,309,331 
Allowance for loan losses � (244,506)

42,064,824 42,177,728 112,904 
Total assets $56,927,804 $57,044,632 $�116,828 

1. Deposits � $54,839,563 $54,839,605 $� 41 
2. Negotiable certificates of deposit � 1,151,863 1,151,863  — 
3. Borrowed money � 7,415,157 7,415,157  — 

Total liabilities � $63,406,585 $63,406,627 $� 41 

Derivative transaction
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied � $� 1,419 $� 1,419 $� — 
Derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied � (207,723) (207,723)  — 

Total derivatives � $� (206,304) $� (206,304) $� — 

(Note 1)
Stocks and others without a quoted market price and Investments in partnerships and others
The following are the consolidated balance sheet amounts of Stocks and others without a quoted market price, and Investments in 
limited partnerships. These amounts are not included Available-for-sale in fair value information of financial instruments.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Non-listed stocks � ¥� 3,871 ¥� 4,753 $� 31,393 
Investments in limited partnerships � 28,967 35,814 236,540 

Non-listed stocks are not subject to disclosure of the fair value in accordance with Article 5 of Implementation Guidance on Disclosures 
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (ASBJ Guidance No.19, March 31, 2020).
Investments in limited partnerships are not subject to disclosure of the fair value in accordance with Article 27 of Implementation 
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement (ASBJ Guidance No.31, June 17, 2021)

(Note 2) 
Redemption schedules for monetary claims and securities with maturity after the fiscal year-end

Millions of yen
2023

Due in 1  
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after 
10 years

Securities � ¥� 146,490 ¥� 208,904 ¥� 243,734 ¥289,892 ¥� 691,290 ¥� 764,082 
Held-to-maturity securities � 667 867 279 — — —

National government bonds � — — — — — —
Local government bonds � — — — — — —
Corporate bonds � 667 867 279 — — —
Others � — — — — — —

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity � 145,823 208,036 243,454 289,892 691,290 764,082
National government bonds � 2,000 — —  15,000 319,000 420,000
Local government bonds � 87,581 133,222 156,552 193,435 196,877 4,536
Corporate bonds � 19,246 25,697 16,700 3,711 128,894  1,800 
Others � 36,994 49,115 70,201 77,745 46,517 337,745

Loans and bills discounted � 1,432,657 978,668 763,895 526,499 539,791 1,652,569
Total � ¥1,579,148 ¥1,187,572 ¥1,007,630 ¥816,391 ¥1,231,082 ¥2,416,651
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Millions of yen
2024

Due in 1 
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after  
10 years

Securities � ¥� 110,303 ¥� 233,225 ¥� 297,290 ¥296,642 ¥� 502,385 ¥� 553,912
Held-to-maturity securities � 3,194 5,930 6,921  6,737  18,275  — 

National government bonds �  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Local government bonds �  2,586  5,173  6,728  6,728  18,275  — 
Corporate bonds � 607 757 193  9  —  — 
Others �  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity � 107,109 227,294 290,368 289,905 484,109 553,912
National government bonds � — —  —  55,000 199,000 70,000
Local government bonds � 67,627 141,285 197,056 190,470 132,895 3,699
Corporate bonds � 18,154 23,776 18,698 3,311 126,749  — 
Others � 21,327 62,232 74,613 41,123 25,464 480,212

Loans and bills discounted � 1,494,064 1,042,033 930,666 586,184 604,023 1,652,968
Total � ¥1,604,368 ¥1,275,259 ¥1,227,956 ¥882,826 ¥1,106,408 ¥2,206,881

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Due in 1 
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after 
10 years

Securities � $� 728,511 $1,540,357 $1,963,479 $1,959,201 $3,318,043 $� 3,658,363 
Held-to-maturity securities � 21,097 39,170 45,716  44,495  120,702  — 

National government bonds �  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Local government bonds �  17,083  34,166  44,436  44,436  120,702  — 
Corporate bonds � 4,014 5,003 1,280  59  —  — 
Others �  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity � 707,413 1,501,187 1,917,762  1,914,706 3,197,341 3,658,363
National government bonds � — —  —  363,252 1,314,312 462,320
Local government bonds � 446,653 933,133 1,301,478  1,257,981 877,717 24,436
Corporate bonds � 119,902 157,035 123,495  21,867 837,127  — 
Others � 140,858 411,018 492,788  271,604 168,184 3,171,606

Loans and bills discounted � 9,867,672 6,882,197 6,146,662 3,871,502 3,989,323 10,917,169
Total � $10,596,184 $8,422,555 $8,110,141 $5,830,704 $7,307,367 $14,575,533 

(Note)
Loans and bills in the above tables exclude loans and bills whose redemption amounts are impossible to estimate (¥67,183 million 
and ¥65,879 million (U.S.$435,105 thousand) in 2023 and 2024, respectively), such as credit extended to debtors that are legally 
bankrupt, those that are effectively in similar conditions, or those that are not yet legally or substantially bankrupt but are likely to be 
bankrupt, as well as loans and bills with no maturity date (¥30,031million and ¥30,236 million (U.S.$ 199,696 thousand) in 2023 
and 2024, respectively).

(Note 3)
Repayment schedules for deposits and other interest-bearing debt after the fiscal year-end

Millions of yen
2023

Due in 1 
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after 
10 years

Deposit � ¥7,634,455 ¥378,237 ¥� 23,093 ¥2,865 ¥6,186 ¥ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit � 199,369 50 —  — — —
Borrowed money � 283,893 343,700 299,400  — — —

Total � ¥8,117,718 ¥721,987 ¥322,493 ¥2,865 ¥6,186 ¥ —

Millions of yen
2024

Due in 1 
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after 
10 years

Deposit � ¥7,926,870 ¥343,551 ¥� 23,326 ¥3,470 ¥6,039 ¥ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit � 174,403  — — — — —
Borrowed money � 353,429  474,700  294,600 — — —

Total � ¥8,454,703 ¥818,251 ¥317,926 ¥3,470 ¥6,039 ¥ —
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Due in 1 
year or less

Due from 1 
year to 3 years

Due from 3 
year to 5 years

Due from 5 
year to 7 years

Due from 7 
year to 10 years

Due after 
10 years

Deposit � $52,353,681 $2,269,011 $� 154,060 $22,924 $39,885 $ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit � 1,151,863  — — — — —
Borrowed money � 2,334,251 3,135,195 1,945,710 — — —

Total � $55,839,796 $5,404,207 $2,099,770 $22,924 $39,885 $ —

(Note)
The amount of demand deposit, which is a part of deposit, is included in the figure for “Due in 1 year or less.”

(3) Matters regarding to breakdown of fair value of financial instruments by level
Fair values of financial instruments are classified into the following three levels on the basis of the observability and the materiality 
of the valuation inputs used in fair value measurements.
Fair values of Level 1: Fair values measured by quoted prices of the assets or liabilities being measured which are given in active 
markets among observable valuation inputs
Fair values of Level 2: Fair values measured by inputs other than inputs included within Level 1 among observable valuation inputs
Fair values of Level 3: Fair values measured by unobservable valuation inputs

When several inputs that have significant impact on fair value measurement are used and those inputs are classified into different 
levels, the fair value is categorized into the lowest priority level for fair value measurement among the levels in which each of the 
inputs belongs.

(1) Financial instruments record at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet

Millions of yen
2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Other securities 
National government bonds � ¥� 783,825 ¥� — ¥� — ¥� 783,825
Local government bonds � —  768,313  — 768,313
Corporate bonds � — 158,059 35,071 193,130
Stocks �  197,932 —  — 197,932
Others � 67,521 571,872  — 639,394

Derivative Transactions
Interest Rate Related Transactions �  — 419  — 419
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 7,050  — 7,050
Others �  —  — 165 165

Total Assets � ¥1,049,279 ¥1,505,715 ¥35,236 ¥2,590,231

Derivative Transactions 
Interest Rate Related Transactions � ¥� — ¥ � 145 ¥� — ¥ � 145 
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 12,982  — 12,982 
Others �  —  — 165 165 

Total Liabilities � ¥� — ¥� 13,128 ¥� 165 ¥� 13,293 
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Millions of yen
2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Other securities
National government bonds � ¥�340,465 ¥� — ¥� — ¥� 340,465
Local government bonds � —  725,208  — 725,208
Corporate bonds � — 148,166 36,204 184,371
Stocks �  215,799 —  — 215,799
Others � 82,136 661,163  — 743,299

Derivative Transactions
Interest Rate Related Transactions �  — 557  — 557
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 7,623  — 7,623
Others �  —  — 174 174

Total Assets � ¥�638,402 ¥�1,542,719 ¥�36,378 ¥�2,217,500

Derivative Transactions
Interest Rate Related Transactions � ¥� — ¥� 253 ¥� — ¥� 253 
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 39,164  — 39,164 
Others �  —  — 174 174 

Total Liabilities � ¥� — ¥� 39,417 ¥� 174 ¥� 39,591 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Other securities
National government bonds � $�2,248,635 $� — $� — $� 2,248,635 
Local government bonds �  — 4,789,698  —  4,789,698 
Corporate bonds �  — 978,580 239,117  1,217,697 
Stocks �  1,425,266  —  —  1,425,266 
Others � 542,478 4,366,706  — 4,909,184 

Derivative Transactions
Interest Rate Related Transactions �  — 3,682  —  3,682 
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 50,349  —  50,349 
Others �  —  — 1,150  1,150 

Total Assets � $�4,216,380 $�10,189,016 $�240,267 $�14,645,665 

Derivative Transactions
Interest Rate Related Transactions � $� — $� 1,674 $� — $� 1,674 
Foreign Exchange Related Transactions �  — 258,662  — 258,662 
Others �  —  — 1,150 1,150 

Total Liabilities � $� — $� 260,336 $� 1,150 $� 261,486 

(Note)
Marketable securities do not include investment trusts to which the treatment prescribed in Article 24-9 of the “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Calculation of Market Value” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, June 17, 2021) is applied whereby net asset value is treated as fair 
value. The carrying value of investment trusts to which the treatment prescribed  in Article 24-9 is applied is ¥200 million  (U.S.$1,320 
thousand).

Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of investment trusts to which the treatment in Section 24-9 has been applied. 

Millions of yen
2024

Gains (losses)/ other 
comprehensive income for 

the year

Balance at the 
beginning of 
the fiscal year

Recorded to 
gains (losses) 
for the year

Recorded to 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Net amount 
of purchase, 

sale, and 
redemption

Amount of 
investment trusts 

that have been 
accounted for by 

deeming their unit 
prices to be their 

fair values

Amount of 
investment trusts 

that have been 
accounted for by 

not deeming their 
unit prices to be 
their fair values

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year

Unrealized gains (losses) 
on investment trusts held 

as of the consolidated 
balance sheet date among 
the amount recorded to 

gains (losses) for the year
¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥200 ¥ — ¥ — ¥200 ¥ —
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Gains (losses)/ other 
comprehensive income for 

the year

Balance at the 
beginning of 
the fiscal year

Recorded to 
gains (losses) 
for the year

Recorded to 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Net amount 
of purchase, 

sale, and 
redemption

Amount of 
investment trusts 

that have been 
accounted for by 

deeming their unit 
prices to be their 

fair values

Amount of 
investment trusts 

that have been 
accounted for by 

not deeming their 
unit prices to be 
their fair values

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year

Unrealized gains (losses) 
on investment trusts held 

as of the consolidated 
balance sheet date among 
the amount recorded to 

gains (losses) for the year
$ — $ — $ — $1,320 $ — $ — $1,320 $ —

(2) Financial instruments other than financial instruments recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet

Millions of yen
2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds
Corporate bonds � ¥ — ¥� — ¥� 1,830 ¥� 1,830

Loans � — — 5,970,135 5,970,135
Total Assets � ¥ — ¥� — ¥�5,971,965 ¥�5,971,965 

Deposit ¥ — ¥�8,044,853 ¥� — ¥�8,044,853 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits �  — 199,419  — 199,419 
Borrowed Money �  — 924,693 2,300 926,993 
Total Liabilities � ¥ — ¥�9,168,966 ¥� 2,300 ¥�9,171,266 

Millions of yen
2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds
Local government bonds � ¥ — ¥� 40,073 ¥� — ¥� 40,073
Corporate bonds � — — 1,579 1,579

Loans � — — 6,386,129 6,386,129
Total Assets � ¥ — ¥� 40,073 ¥�6,387,709 ¥�6,427,782

Deposit ¥ — ¥�8,303,264 ¥�  — ¥�8,303,264
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits � — 174,403 — 174,403
Borrowed Money � — 1,120,429 2,300 1,122,729
Total Liabilities � ¥ — ¥�9,598,097 ¥� 2,300 ¥�9,600,397

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 total
Securities

Held-to-maturity bonds
Local government bonds � $ — $� 264,670 $� — $� 264,670
Corporate bonds � — — 10,429 10,429

Loans � — — 42,177,728 42,177,728
Total Assets � $ — $� 264,670 $�42,188,158 $�42,452,828

Deposit $ — $�54,839,605 $� — $�54,839,605
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits � — 1,151,863 — 1,151,863
Borrowed Money � — 7,399,967 15,190 7,415,157
Total Liabilities � $ — $�63,391,436 $� 15,190 $�63,406,627
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(Note1)
Explanation of valuation techniques and valuation inputs used in fair value measurements
Assets
1) Securities
Fair values of securities for which unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets are available are classified as Level 1 which includes 
mainly stocks and government bonds. In the case the market is inactive even if the quoted market price is available, those securities are 
classified as Level 2, which includes mainly local government bonds and corporate bonds. For investment trusts for which no market 
trading prices exist, unit prices are used as fair value and classified as Level 2 fair value if there are no material restrictions for which 
market participants would demand compensation for risk with respect to cancellation or  repurchase requests. 

Privately-placed bonds with the Bank’s guarantee are stated at the fair value, measured by discounting the expected cash flows 
estimated to reflect the issuing entity’s credit risk as of the closing date, using the market interest rate. Privately-placed bonds with the 
Bank’s guarantee are classified as Level 3.
2) Loans and bills discount
Interest rates of variable interest rate loans reflect market interest rate at short intervals, and thus their fair values are stated at book value 
because of their proximity to fair value, unless there are significant changes to the debtors’ credit conditions. Fixed interest rate loans are 
stated at their fair value as measured by discounting their cash flows, of which those with OTC interest rate are stated at fair value as 
measured by discounting their scheduled cash flow using the interest rate that would be applicable to similar new loans and is 
determined by category and by term. Loans not with OTC interest rate are stated at fair value as measured for each credit rating group by 
discounting their future cash flow estimated to reflect the credit risk of each such group, using the market interest rate. For loans with 
short-term maturity (1 year or less), book value is recorded as its fair value because of the proximity between the two.

In addition, loans to debtors that are bankrupt or potentially bankrupt are stated at book values that are deemed to approximate their 
fair values on the consolidated balance sheets as of the consolidated closing date, minus the current amount of estimated loan losses, 
which are estimated based upon the current values of estimated future cash flows, collateral, guarantees, or estimated collectible 
amounts.

Loans undated due to their specific attributes, such as a loan amount being limited within the value of collateral assets, are stated at 
book value which is deemed to approximate their fair value in consideration of factors including estimated payment periods and interest 
rate conditions.

The fair values concerned are classified as Level 3.

Liabilities
1) Deposits and 2) Negotiable certificates of deposits
For demand deposits, fair value is deemed to be the amount payable on demand as of the consolidated closing date (book value).

For time deposits and negotiable certificates of deposits, fair value is measured by discounting future cash flows, using interest rates 
applicable to new deposits and the market interest rate, respectively. 

For these deposits with short-term maturity (1 year or less), book value is recorded as its fair value because of the proximity between 
the two. 

Those fair values are classified as Level 2.

3) Borrowed Money
The carrying amount of borrowed money with variable interest rates approximates fair value because the market rates are promptly 
reflected in the variable interest rate and the credit risks of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries have not changed significantly after 
borrowing. The fair value of borrowed money with fixed interest rates is determined by discounting future cash flows at the rate that 
would be applied for similar new contracts.

For borrowed money with short-term maturity (1 year or less), book value is recorded as its fair value because of the proximity 
between the two. The fair values of borrowed money are classified as Level 2  if the effect of unobservable inputs is insignificant.

4) Derivative Transactions
Derivative transactions that can be measured at unadjusted quoted prices in active markets are classified as Level 1, which includes such 
transactions as bonds futures and interest rate futures. However, since most derivative transactions are over-the-counter transactions and 
there are no quoted market prices, market values are measured using valuation techniques such as the discounted cash flow method and 
the Black-Scholes model, depending on the type of transaction and the maturity period. The main inputs which are used in those 
valuation techniques are interest rates, exchange rates, volatility and others. In addition, price adjustments based on credit risk of 
counterparty and credit risk of majority-owned consolidated subsidiaries and other consolidated subsidiaries themselves and price 
adjustments for unsecured funding are made. When unobservable inputs are not used or impact of unobservable inputs are not material, 
transactions are classified as Level 2, which includes such transactions as plain vanilla interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forwards. 
When significant unobservable inputs are used, transactions are classified as Level 3, which includes Weather Derivatives etc.
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(Note2)Information about fair values of Level 3 from financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value
(1) Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs

As of March 31,2023
Principal valuation 

technique

Significant  
unobservable  

valuation input
Range of valuation 

input Weighted average 
Securities

Available-for-sale securities with maturity
Corporate bonds

private placement bonds
present value 

method
default rate 0.0%-23.1% 1.7%

As of March 31,2024
Principal valuation 

technique

Significant  
unobservable  

valuation input
Range of valuation 

input Weighted average 
Securities

Available-for-sale securities with maturity
Corporate bonds

private placement bonds
present value 

method
default rate 0.0%-100.0% 1.7%

(2) Adjustment table reconciling the balances at the beginning and end of the fiscal year, and valuation gain or loss recognized in the 
gain or loss for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen
2023

Gains (losses)/ other 
comprehensive income 

for the year

Balance at 
the 

beginning 
of the 

fiscal year

Recorded 
to gains 
(losses) 
for the 

year 

Recorded to
other

comprehensive 
income

Net amount 
of purchase, 
sale, issue, 

and 
settlement

Transfer 
to fair 
values 

of Level 
3

Transfer 
from fair 
values of 
Level 3

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year

Unrealized gains (losses) 
on financial assets and 
liabilities held as of the 
consolidated balance 
sheet date among the 

amount recorded to gains 
(losses) for the year

Securities
Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity

Corporate bonds
private placement bonds ¥39,392 ¥ — ¥13 ¥(4,335) ¥ — ¥ — ¥35,071 ¥ —

Millions of yen
2024

Gains (losses)/ other 
comprehensive income 

for the year

Balance at 
the 

beginning 
of the 

fiscal year

Recorded 
to gains 
(losses) 
for the 

year 

Recorded to
other

comprehensive 
income

Net amount 
of purchase, 
sale, issue, 

and 
settlement

Transfer 
to fair 
values 

of Level 
3

Transfer 
from fair 
values of 
Level 3

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year

Unrealized gains (losses) 
on financial assets and 
liabilities held as of the 
consolidated balance 
sheet date among the 

amount recorded to gains 
(losses) for the year

Securities
Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity

Corporate bonds
private placement bonds ¥35,071 ¥ — ¥(48) ¥1,182 ¥ — ¥ — ¥36,204 ¥ —

010_0171801372409.indd   26010_0171801372409.indd   26 2024/09/19   11:42:092024/09/19   11:42:09



27

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Gains (losses)/ other 
comprehensive income 

for the year

Balance at 
the 

beginning 
of the 

fiscal year

Recorded 
to gains 
(losses) 
for the 

year 

Recorded to 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Net amount 
of purchase, 
sale, issue, 

and 
settlement

Transfer 
to fair 
values 

of Level 
3

Transfer 
from fair 
values of 
Level 3

Balance at 
the end of 
the fiscal 

year

Unrealized gains (losses) 
on financial assets and 
liabilities held as of the 
consolidated balance 
sheet date among the 

amount recorded to gains 
(losses) for the year

Securities
Available-for-sale securities with 
maturity

Corporate bonds
private placement bonds $231,629 $ — $(319) $7,806 $ — $ — $239,117 $ —

(3) Explanation of the fair value valuation process
The Bank has established policies and procedures regarding the measurements of fair value, and each transaction department 
measures fair value in accordance with these policies and procedures.

For the fair values and the level classification, the validity of the valuation techniques and valuation inputs used in fair value 
measurement are verified.

In fair value measurement, valuation models in which the nature, characteristics and risks of individual assets are most 
appropriately reflected are used.

In addition, when quoted prices obtained from third parties are used, the validity of the prices is verified by appropriate methos 
such as confirmation of valuation techniques and valuation inputs and comparison with the fair values of similar financial 
instruments.

(4) Explanation of the effects on fair values when significant unobservable inputs are changed
The default rate indicates the likelihood of a default event occurring, and is an estimate measured based on the actual default rare of 
our customers. A significant increase (decrease) in the default rate would generally be accompanied by a decrease (increase) in the 
fair value.
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6.  Securities

(1)	Market Value of Securities
Market value and valuation differences of securities as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 and other related information were as follows. 
Securities below include trading securities classified as trading account securities, negotiable certificates of deposits classified as Cash 
and due from banks. The same definition was applied in the following tables (a) to (e).

(a) Trading account securities

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Valuation gain included in income for the year � ¥8 ¥2 $16 

(b) Held-to-maturity bonds
The Bank’s and its consolidated subsidiaries’ investments in held-to-maturity bonds as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were summarized as 
follows.

Millions of yen
2023

Carrying Value Market Value Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed carrying value

National government bonds � ¥� — ¥� — ¥�—
Local government bonds � — — —
Corporate bonds � 1,805 1,821 15
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � ¥1,805 ¥1,821 ¥15
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed 
carrying value

National government bonds � ¥� — ¥� — ¥�—
Local government bonds � — — —
Corporate bonds � 9 8 (0)
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � ¥� 9 ¥� 8 ¥�(0)
Total � ¥1,814 ¥1,830 ¥15

Millions of yen
2024

Carrying Value Market Value Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed carrying value

National government bonds � ¥� — ¥� — ¥� —
Local government bonds � 39,491 40,073 582
Corporate bonds � 1,558 1,570 11
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � ¥41,049 ¥41,644 ¥594
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed 
carrying value

National government bonds � ¥� — ¥� — ¥� —
Local government bonds � — — —
Corporate bonds � 8 8 —
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � ¥� 8 ¥� 8 ¥� —
Total � ¥41,058 ¥41,652 ¥594

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Carrying Value Market Value Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed carrying value

National government bonds � $� — $� — $� —
Local government bonds � 260,824 264,670 3,845
Corporate bonds � 10,293 10,371 77
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � $271,117 $275,041 $3,923
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed 
carrying value

National government bonds � $� — $� — $� —
Local government bonds � — — —
Corporate bonds � 58 58 —
Other securities � — — —

Sub total � $� 58 $� 58 $� —
Total � $271,175 $275,099 $3,923
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(c) Available for sale securities

Millions of yen
2023

Carrying Value Cost Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed cost

Stocks � ¥� 133,283 ¥� 74,274 ¥� 59,009 
Bonds � 442,731 440,077 2,653 

National government bonds � 77,312 76,633 678 
Local government bonds � 309,104 307,602 1,501 
Corporate bonds � 56,314 55,841 473 

Other securities � 183,717 175,438 8,279 
Foreign bonds � 131,307 130,390 917 
Other securities � 52,409 45,048 7,361 

Sub total � ¥� 759,732 ¥� 689,790 ¥� 69,941 
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed cost
Stocks � ¥� 64,648 ¥� 68,727 ¥� (4,078)
Bonds � 1,302,537 1,339,928 (37,391)

National government bonds �  706,512 735,072 (28,559)
Local government bonds � 459,208 464,601 (5,392)
Corporate bonds � 136,815 140,255 (3,439)

Other securities � 482,281 516,979 (34,698)
Foreign bonds � 250,734 256,666 (5,931)
Other securities � 231,547 260,313 (28,766)

Sub total � ¥1,849,467 ¥1,925,636 ¥�(76,168)
Total � ¥2,609,200 ¥2,615,426 ¥� (6,226)

Millions of yen
2024

Carrying Value Cost Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed cost

Stocks � ¥� 175,307 ¥� 95,749 ¥� 79,558 
Bonds � 145,893 145,059 834 

National government bonds �  —  —  — 
Local government bonds � 110,952 110,363 589 
Corporate bonds � 34,940 34,696 244 

Other securities � 292,858 280,821 12,037 
Foreign bonds � 199,825 198,798 1,026 
Other securities � 93,033 82,023 11,010 

Sub total � ¥� 614,059 ¥� 521,630 ¥� 92,429 
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed cost
Stocks � ¥� 40,491 ¥� 43,747 ¥� (3,255)
Bonds � 1,104,152 1,133,368 (29,216)

National government bonds �  340,465  354,762 (14,296)
Local government bonds � 614,255 622,576 (8,320)
Corporate bonds � 149,430 156,030 (6,599)

Other securities � 483,112 512,148 (29,035)
Foreign bonds � 303,980 311,495 (7,514)
Other securities � 179,132 200,653 (21,520)

Sub total � ¥1,627,756 ¥1,689,264 ¥�(61,507)
Total � ¥2,241,816 ¥2,210,894 ¥� 30,922 
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Carrying Value Cost Differences

Securities of which market 
value exceed cost

Stocks � $� 1,157,835 $� 632,384 $� 525,451 
Bonds � 963,566 958,056 5,509 

National government bonds �  —  —  — 
Local government bonds � 732,796 728,902 3,893 
Corporate bonds � 230,770 229,153 1,616 

Other securities � 1,934,208 1,854,708 79,499 
Foreign bonds � 1,319,761 1,312,979 6,781 
Other securities � 614,446 541,728 72,717 

Sub total � $� 4,055,610 $� 3,445,148 $� 610,461 
Securities of which market 

value does not exceed cost
Stocks � $� 267,430 $� 288,931 $� (21,500)
Bonds � 7,292,465 7,485,428 (192,963)

National government bonds �  2,248,635  2,343,058 (94,422)
Local government bonds � 4,056,902 4,111,855 (54,953)
Corporate bonds � 986,927 1,030,514 (43,586)

Other securities � 3,190,759 3,382,528 (191,769)
Foreign bonds � 2,007,663 2,057,297 (49,633)
Other securities � 1,183,095 1,325,231 (142,135)

Sub total � $10,750,655 $11,156,888 $(406,232)
Total � $14,806,265 $14,602,037 $� 204,228 

(d) Available-for-sale securities sold

Millions of yen
2023

Proceeds from 
sales Gains Losses

Stocks � ¥142,667 ¥26,736 ¥� 1,265 
Bonds � 18,670 0  1,749 

National government bonds � 18,112 —  1,749 
Local government bonds �  —  —  — 
Corporate bonds � 558 0  — 

Other securities � 345,218 5,061 29,851 
Foreign bonds � 241,897 — 29,720 
Other securities � 103,320 5,061 130 

Total � ¥506,556 ¥31,798 ¥32,866 

Millions of yen
2024

Proceeds from 
sales Gains Losses

Stocks � ¥306,707 ¥30,003 ¥� 1,683 
Bonds � 428,958 769  23,330 

National government bonds � 428,850 769  23,330 
Local government bonds �  —  —  — 
Corporate bonds � 108 0  — 

Other securities � 102,995 2,603 2,112 
Foreign bonds � 26,113 — 1,975 
Other securities � 76,882 2,603 136 

Total � ¥838,661 ¥33,376 ¥27,125 
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

Proceeds from 
sales Gains Losses

Stocks � $2,025,673 $198,161 $� 11,118 
Bonds � 2,833,094 5,084  154,085 

National government bonds � 2,832,381 5,084  154,085 
Local government bonds �  —  —  — 
Corporate bonds � 713 0  — 

Other securities � 680,244 17,193 13,950 
Foreign bonds � 172,466 — 13,047 
Other securities � 507,778 17,193 903 

Total � $5,539,012 $220,439 $179,154 

(e) Guarantee obligations for bonds in private placement
Guarantee obligations for bonds in private placement (defined in Article 2 (3) of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act) included 
in Corporate Bonds were ¥36,652 million and ¥37,588 million (U.S.$248,253 thousand) as of March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

7.  Money Held in Trust

Money Held in Trust for Trading Purposes

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Consolidated Balance Sheet Amount � ¥3,354 ¥3,351 $22,132
Unrealized Gains Included in the Consolidated Statements of  

Income � — — —

Money Held in Trust for Holding Purposes �  Nil (as of March, 2023 and 2024)

Money Held in Trust for Other Purposes

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Consolidated Balance Sheet Amount � ¥6,500 ¥8,900 $58,781
Cost � 6,500 8,900 58,781
Differences � — — —
Gains � — — —
Losses � — — —

8.  Valuation Difference on Available-for-sale Securities

Valuation difference on available-for-sale Securities as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 consisted of the following

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Valuation Difference � ¥(6,404) ¥30,744 $203,051

Available-for-sale Securities � (6,404) 30,744 203,051
Money Held in Trust for Other Purpose �  —  —  — 
Deferred Tax Assets � 2,045  —  — 
Deferred Tax Liabilities � — 9,284 61,317

Valuation Difference, Net of Taxes � (4,358) 21,459 141,734
Amount Attributable to Non-controlling interests � —  —  — 
Net Unrealized Gains on Available-for-sale Securities Owned by 

Affiliates, which is Attributable to the Parent �
1,437 2,157 14,248

Valuation Difference on Available-for-sale Securities � (2,920) 23,617 155,983

9.  Derivative Financial Instruments Transactions

(1)	Derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied
With respects to the derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, contract amount or notional amount set out in the contract, 
fair value, valuation gain or loss and calculation method of such fair value, by class of underlying asset at the end of the year are as 
described below. The whole contract amounts and other amounts shown here are not indicative of the market risks associated with these 
derivative transactions.
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(a)Interest Rate Related Transactions

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after  
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Interest rate futures:
Written � ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Purchased � — — — — — — — —

Total � ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Interest rate futures:
Written � $ — $ — $ — $ —
Purchased �   — — — —

Total � $ — $ — $ — $ —

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Interest rate swaps:
Receipt fixed

payments floating � ¥29,033 ¥28,903 ¥�(63) ¥�(63) ¥30,117 ¥29,437 ¥�(160) ¥�(160)
Receipt floating

payments fixed � 29,033 28,903 337 337 30,117 29,437 464 464 
Total � ¥58,066 ¥57,806 ¥274 ¥274 ¥60,234 ¥58,874 ¥� 304 ¥� 304 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
 2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Interest rate swaps:
Receipt fixed

payments floating � $198,912 $194,420 $�(1,060) $�(1,060)
Receipt floating

payments fixed � 198,912 194,420 3,068 3,068 
Total � $397,824 $388,841 $� 2,008 $� 2,008 

Transactions above are stated at the fair value and the related valuation gain or loss is reported in the consolidated statements of 
incomes.

(b) Foreign Exchange Related Transactions

Millions of yen
2023 2024

For the years ended 
March 31,

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

currency futures
Written � ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Purchased � — — — — — — — —

Total � ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —

Thousands of U.S. dollars
 2024

For the year ended March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

currency futures
Written � $ —   $ —   $ — $ —   
Purchased �  —  —  —  — 

Total � $ —   $ —   $ — $ —   

010_0171801372409.indd   32010_0171801372409.indd   32 2024/09/19   11:42:092024/09/19   11:42:09



33

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Currency swaps � ¥120,986 ¥109,499 ¥169 ¥185 ¥121,646 ¥90,367 ¥123 ¥144 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

As of March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Currency swaps  � $803,425 $596,840 $818 $953 

Millions of yen
2023 2024

For the years ended 
March 31,

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Forward exchange 
contracts:
Written � ¥5,171 ¥ — ¥(10) ¥(10) ¥5,266 ¥ — ¥�(181) ¥�(181)
Purchased � 4,243 — 1 1 2,746  — 145 145 

Total � ¥9,414 ¥ — ¥� (8) ¥� (8) ¥8,013 ¥ — ¥� (36) ¥� (36)

Currency options:
Written � ¥287,241 ¥248,453 ¥�(4,320) ¥� 904 ¥367,051 ¥317,726 ¥�(1,789) ¥� 5,395 
Purchased � 287,241 248,453 3,689 1,329 367,051 317,726 1,613 (2,335)

Total � ¥574,482 ¥496,906 ¥� (631) ¥2,233 ¥734,102 ¥635,453 ¥� (176) ¥� 3,060 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
 2024

For the year ended March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Forward exchange contracts:
Written � $34,784 $ — $�(1,200) $�(1,200)
Purchased � 18,141 — 959 959 

Total � $52,925 $ — $� (240) $� (240)

Currency options:
Written � $2,424,222 $2,098,453 $�(11,821) $� 35,637 
Purchased � 2,424,222 2,098,453 10,653 (15,426)

Total � $4,848,444 $4,196,907 $� (1,167) $� 20,211 

Transactions above are stated at the fair value and the related valuation gain or loss is reported in the consolidated statements of 
incomes.

(c) Other 
Millions of yen

2023 2024

For the years ended March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Weather derivative, etc.
Written � ¥14,645 ¥ — ¥�(165) ¥ — ¥15,765 ¥ — ¥�(174) ¥ — 
Purchased � 14,645 — 165 — 15,765  — 174  — 
Total � ¥29,290 ¥ — ¥� — ¥ — ¥31,530 ¥ — ¥� — ¥ — 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

For the year ended March 31,
Contract
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Valuation
profit

Weather derivative, etc.
Written � $104,121 $ — $(1,150) $ — 
Purchased �  104,121  — 1,150  — 
Total � $208,242 $ — $� — $ — 

(d) Equity Related Transactions ............	Nil 
(e) Bond Related Transactions ..............	Nil 
(f) Commodity Related Transactions ...	 Nil 
(g) Credit Derivatives ............................	 Nil 
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(2)	Derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied
With respects to the derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract amount or notional amount set out in the contract and 
the fair value at the end of the year along with the calculation method of such fair value, by class of underlying asset and by method of 
hedge accounting, are as follows. The whole contract amounts and other amounts shown here are not indicative of the market risks 
associated with these derivative transactions.

(a)Interest Rate Related Transactions

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Hedged 
items

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Standard treatment: Interest rate swaps: � — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Interest rate futures: � — — — — — — —
Interest rate options: � — — — — — — —
Others � — — — — — — —
Total � ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

As of March 31,
Hedged 
items

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Standard treatment: Interest rate swaps: � — $ — $ — $ —
Interest rate futures: � — — — —
Interest rate options: � — — — —
Others � — — — —
Total � $ — $ — $ —

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Hedged 
items

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Exceptional treatment: Interest rate swaps: Loan ¥26,104 ¥21,812 ¥34,021 ¥29,736 
Receipt fixed
  payments floating � — — *note — — *note
Receipt floating
  payments fixed � 26,104 21,812 34,021 29,736 
Total � ¥� — ¥� — ¥� — ¥� —

(Note) As the swaps that qualify for exceptional treatment for interest rate swaps are treated as one combined with hedged loans, fair 
value of the former is included in that of the latter in the ”Financial Instruments”

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

As of March 31,
Hedged 
items

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Exceptional treatment: Interest rate swaps: Loan $224,695 $196,400 
Receipt fixed
  payments floating � — — *note
Receipt floating
  payments fixed � 224,695 196,400 
Total � $� — $� —

The Bank mainly treats them under the deferred method of hedge accounting based on Industry-specific Special Committee Practical 
Guidance No.24.

(b) Foreign Exchange Related Transactions

Millions of yen
2023 2024

As of March 31,
Hedged  
items

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Standard treatment: Currency swaps: � Call loans, Loans, 
Bonds and Foreign 
exchange

¥287,089 ¥206,971 ¥(5,848) ¥395,180 ¥281,622 ¥(31,177)
Forward exchange 7,423  — 385 9,741  — (274)
   contracts: �

Deferred method: Currency swap: � — — — — — — —
Forward exchange
   contracts: � — — — — — — —
Total � ¥� — ¥� — ¥(5,462) ¥� — ¥� — ¥(31,451)
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2024

As of March 31,
Contract 
amounts

Due after
1 year

Fair
Value

Standard treatment: Currency swaps: � Call loans, Loans, 
Bonds and Foreign 
exchange

$2,610,000 $1,860,000 $(205,911)
Forward exchange 64,341  — (1,812)
  contracts: �

Deferred method: Currency swap: � — — — —
Forward exchange
  contracts: � — — — —
Total � $� — $� — $(207,723)

The Bank mainly applies the deferred method of hedge accounting based on Industry-specific Special Committee Practical Guidance 
No.25.

(c) Equity Related Transactions ...............	 Nil
(d) Bond Related Transactions ................	 Nil
(e) Equity Related Transactions ...............	Nil (as of March 31, 2023)
(f) Bond Related Transactions ................	 Nil (as of March 31, 2023)

10.  Comprehensive income 

Amounts of recycling and tax effects on other comprehensive income

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax:

Items recognized during the year ¥(53,865) ¥� 35,427 $� 233,981 
Amounts of recycling 1,392 1,721 11,369 

Before tax effect adjustment (52,473) 37,148 245,350 
Tax effects 15,993 (11,329) (74,828)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax (36,479) 25,818 170,522 

Deferred hedge gains (losses):
Items recognized during the year (5,956) (18,734) (123,732)
Amounts of recycling 6,515 19,728 130,300 

Before tax effect adjustment 559 994 6,567 
Tax effects (170) (303) (2,003)
Deferred hedge gains (losses) 388 691 4,564 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Items recognized during the year 4,519 22,148 146,280 
Amounts of recycling (776) (751) (4,965)

Before tax effect adjustment 3,743 21,396 141,314 
Tax effects (1,141) (6,525) (43,101)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 2,601 14,870 98,213 

Share of other comprehensive income of entities and affiliates 
accounted by the equity method
Items recognized during the year 179 719 4,751 
Amounts of recycling — — —

Before tax effect adjustment 179 719 4,751 
Tax effects — — —
Share of other comprehensive income of entities and 
affiliates accounted by the equity method

179 719 4,751 

Total other comprehensive income ¥(33,310) ¥� 42,099 $� 278,052 
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11.  Property and equipment

Depreciation was computed using the declining-balance method. Property and equipment as of March 31,2023 and 2024 were expressed 
at net of the following accumulated depreciation.

Millions of yen
Thousands of  
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
¥66,735 ¥66,332 $438,098

Deferred gain on real estate deductible for tax purposes amounted to ¥3,572 million and ¥3,449 million (U.S.$22,783 thousand) on 
March 31,2023 and 2024, respectively.

12.  Assets Pledged

Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Securities � ¥1,659,535 ¥1,285,112 $  8,487,630
Loan � 280,310 859,240 5,674,923
Other � 1,000 1,000 6,604
Total � ¥1,940,846 ¥2,145,352 $14,169,159

Liabilities related to the above pledged assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Deposits � ¥224,231 ¥   166,964 $1,102,730
Payables under repurchase agreements � 86,565 136,841 903,779
Payables under securities lending transactions � 723,449 283,947 1,875,356
Borrowed money � 924,693 1,120,429 7,399,967
Other � 130 449 2,971

In addition, the following was pledged as collateral for settlements of exchange or margins for futures transactions as of March, 2023 and 
2024.

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Other � ¥33,385 ¥59,956 $395,987

Guarantee deposits of ¥1,346 and ¥1,318 million (U.S.$8,705 thousand) were included in Other Assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2024, 
respectively.

13.  Revaluation Reserve for Land

Pursuant to the Law concerning Land Revaluation, premises used for business operations have been revalued as of  March 31, 1998. 
Premises revaluation gain was included in Net Assets, net of income taxes.

Date of the revaluation: March 31,1998

Revaluation method stipulated in paragraph 3,Article 3 of the Law concerning Land Revaluation Calculated by applying reasonable 
adjustments to the roadside values such as adjustments for the shape of the land, based on Item 4, Article 2 of the Enforcement Ordinance 
of the Law concerning Land Revaluation (Enforcement Ordinance No. 119, effective March 31, 1998).

The difference between the revalued carrying amount and the fair value of premises revalued pursuant to Article 10 of the Law was 
¥15,746 million and ¥15,349million (U.S.$101,376 thousand) as of March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively

010_0171801372409.indd   36010_0171801372409.indd   36 2024/09/19   11:42:092024/09/19   11:42:09



37

14.  Retirement Benefits	

Retirement benefit plans 
Retirement benefit plans adopted by the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries 

The Bank and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established defined benefit plans comprising a retirement lump-sum payment 
plan and defined benefit welfare pension plan (funded type), as well as defined contribution plan namely defined contribution pension 
plan. In addition, premium retirement benefits may be payable in certain circumstance at an employees’ retirement. The Bank has a 
retirement benefit trust in place.

The changes in the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year � ¥87,230 ¥82,399 $544,214 
Service cost � 1,929 1,776 11,731 
Interest cost � 623 852 5,632 
Actuarial loss � (4,275) (5,171) (34,157)
Retirement benefits paid � (3,108) (3,202) (21,148)
Prior service cost �  —  —  — 
Other �  —  —  — 
Balance at the end of the year � ¥82,399 ¥76,654 $506,274 

(Note)
Consolidated subsidiaries use simplified method in calculating retirement benefit obligations.

The changes in plan assets during the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year � ¥97,681 ¥  99,004 $653,885 
Expected return on plan assets � 2,275 2,295 15,163 
Actuarial loss � 244 16,976 112,123 
Contributions by the Bank � 905 889  5,873 
Retirement benefits paid � (2,102) (2,125) (14,036)
Other �  —  —  — 
Balance at the end of the year � ¥99,004 ¥117,041 $773,009 

Reconciliation of ending balances of retirement benefit obligations and plan assets, and net defined liability and net defined asset 
recorded on the consolidated balance sheets was as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Funded retirement benefit obligation � ¥� 82,399 ¥� 76,654 $� 506,274 
Plan assets at fair value � (99,004) (117,041) (773,009)

(16,605) (40,386) (266,735)
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation � — —  — 
Net liability (asset) for retirement benefits in the balance sheets � (16,605) (40,386) (266,735)

Net defined liability � 358 342 2,258 
Net defined asset � (16,963) (40,728) (268,994)
Net liability (asset) for retirement benefits in the balance sheets � ¥(16,605) ¥� (40,386) $(266,735)

Components of retirement benefit expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024  were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Service cost � ¥�1,929 ¥�1,776 $� 11,731 
Interest cost � 623 852 5,632 
Expected return on plan assets � (2,275) (2,295) (15,163)
Amortization of actuarial loss � (776) (751) (4,965)
Amortization of prior service costs � — —  — 
Other � 19 11 74 
Retirement benefit expense associated with defined benefit plans � ¥� (480) ¥� (407) $� (2,689)

010_0171801372409.indd   37010_0171801372409.indd   37 2024/09/19   11:42:092024/09/19   11:42:09



38

(Note) 
Retirement benefit expense at consolidated subsidiaries using the simplified method is collectively included in “Service cost.”

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans on other comprehensive income (before tax effect adjustment) were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Prior service cost � ¥� — ¥� — $� — 
Actuarial gain � 3,743 21,396 141,314 
Other �  —  —  — 
Total � ¥3,743 ¥21,396 $141,314 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Unrecognized prior service cost � ¥� — ¥� — $� — 
Unrecognized actuarial loss � (10,098) (31,495) (208,011)
Other �  —  —  — 
Total � ¥(10,098) ¥(31,495) $(208,011)

The fair value of plan assets, by major classification, as a percentage of total plan assets as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were as follows:

2023 2024
Bonds � 18.3% 16.0%
Stock � 46.1% 52.1%
Life insurance company general accounts � 17.9% 15.3%
Cash and due from banks � 9.7% 0.3%
Other � 8.0% 16.3%
Total � 100.0% 100.0%

(Note)  
Total plan assets included retirement benefit trust of 37.5% and 38.4% as of March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively, which were set for 
corporate pension plans and retirement lump-sum payment plan. 
The expected long-term return on plan assets has been estimated based on the current and anticipated allocation of plan assets and the 
current and expected long-term return on various assets which are the components of plan assets.

The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans were as follows:

2023 2024
1) Discount rates

Welfare pension plan � 1.1% 1.5%
Retirement lump-sum payment plan � 0.7% 1.0%

2) Expected long-term return on plan assets
Welfare pension fund � 2.5% 2.5%
Retirement benefit trust � 1.8 2.5% 1.8 2.5%

3) Other assumptions
Expected rate of salary raises � 3.9% 3.9%

Defined contribution plan
Amount of contributions required for defined contribution plans at consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 is ¥9 million 
and ¥10 million (U.S.$68 thousand), respectively.
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15.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

The reconciliation of cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance sheets to the cash and cash equivalents as of March 31 2023 
and 2024 was as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Cash and Due from Banks � ¥1,833,043 ¥1,844,728 $12,183,664
Interest-bearing Deposits included in Due from Banks  
(excluding Due from BOJ) � (3,089) (14,225) (93,951)

Cash and Cash Equivalents � ¥1,829,954 ¥1,830,503 $12,089,711

*2 �Major components of assets and liabilities related to sale of businesses with cash and cash equivalents exchanged as consideration

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2023
Major components of a decrease in assets and liabilities, etc., resulting from the transfer, through an absorption-type split, of the 
Bank’s credit card membership business to The Gungin Card Co., Ltd., an unconsolidated subsidiary accounted for by the equity 
method, are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023

Assets (including Monetary claims bought of ¥5,706 ($42,732)) ¥� 5,763 $� 43,166
Liabilities (1,374) (10,292)
Gain on sale of businesses 47 357 
Sale price of businesses 4,437 33,230 
Cash and cash equivalents — —
Difference: Proceeds from sale of businesses 4,437 33,230 

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 
Not applicable.

16.  Lease Transactions	

a. Lessee
Operating leases
Total future lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at March 31, 2023 and 2024 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
With one year ¥� 97 ¥104 $� 688 
Over one year 301  252  1,664 
Total ¥398 ¥356 $2,353 

b. Lessor
Leased investment asset at March 31,2023 and 2024 were summarized as follows :

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024
Lease receivables � ¥44,914 ¥46,513 $307,202 
Estimated residual value � 9,080 9,364 61,848 
Interest income � (5,238) (5,383) (35,557)

Total � ¥48,757 ¥50,494 $333,493 

The lease receivable amount at March 31, 2023 and 2024, and the amount of lease fees receivable on investment assets, which is 
scheduled to be collected after the fiscal year-end, were summarized as follows:

Lease receivables Lease investment assets
Millions of yen Millions of yen

2023 2023

within 1 year ¥3,449 ¥13,830 
over 1 year and within 2 years � 2,801 10,883 
over 2 years and within 3 years � 1,998 8,144 
over 3 years and within 4 years � 1,226 5,624 
over 4 years and within 5 years � 608 3,322 
over 5 years  � 818 3,109 
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Lease receivables Lease investment assets

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2024 2024 2024 2024
within 1 year ¥3,682 $24,323 ¥14,149 $93,454 
over 1year and within 2 years � 2,884 19,049 11,313 74,722 
over 2 years and within 3 years � 2,098 13,862 8,569 56,594 
over 3 years and within 4 years � 1,420 9,380 6,130 40,490 
over 4 years and within 5 years � 771 5,097 3,466 22,893 
over 5 years � 1,248 8,243 2,883 19,047 

17.  Income Taxes

Income taxes applicable to the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries include corporation tax, inhabitants’ tax and enterprise tax.
Income taxes of the foreign consolidated subsidiaries are based generally on the tax rates applicable in their countries of incorporation. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 consisted of :

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2023 2024 2024

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses � ¥10,819 ¥� 9,440 $� 62,348 
Net defined benefit liability � 5,067 5,038 33,279 
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities � 2,165  —  — 
Devaluation loss on securities � 583 562 3,715 
Depreciation � 475 447 2,954 
Other � 5,859 5,754 38,008 

Subtotal � 24,971 21,244 140,307 
Valuation allowance � (4,428) (3,117) (20,588)

Total: Deferred tax assets � 20,543 18,126 119,719 
Deferred tax liabilities:

Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale � (120) (9,284) (61,317)
Retirement benefit trust � (3,339) (3,648) (24,095)
Other � (4,080) (10,566) (69,790)

Total: Deferred tax liabilities � (7,539) (23,499) (155,202)
Net: Deferred tax assets (liabilities) � ¥13,003 ¥� (5,372) $� (35,483)

The reconciliation between the Japanese statutory tax rate and the Bank’s effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 is 
as follows:

2023 2024
Japanese statutory tax rate � 30.5% 30.5%
(Adjustment)
Items permanently non-deductible, including entertainment expenses � 0.2  0.2 
Items permanently excluded from profit, including dividend income � (1.1) (0.9)
Increase(decrease)in valuation allowance � (1.8) (3.2)
Other � 0.4 1.0 
Ratio of income taxes after tax effective accounting � 28.2% 27.6%
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18.  Segment Information

a. Segment information by category of business
Segment information by category of business for the years ended or as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 is summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
Year ended or as of March 31, 2023 Banking Lease Sub total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated
Ordinary income generated from businesses with

External customers � ¥� 142,513 ¥29,386 ¥� 171,899 ¥� 4,690 ¥� 176,589 ¥� — ¥� 176,589 
Internal units � 972 359 1,332 1,312 2,645 (2,645)  — 

143,485 29,745 173,231 6,003 179,235 (2,645) 176,589 
Segment profit � 33,810 1,649 35,459 2,920 38,380 (63) 38,316 
Segment assets � 10,644,132 83,109 10,727,241 45,597 10,772,838 (110,538) 10,662,300 
Segment liabilities � 10,159,706 67,250 10,226,957 18,494 10,245,451 (98,961) 10,146,489 
Others

Depreciation 5,711 691 6,402 66 6,469 103 6,572 
Interest and dividend income 87,331 18 87,350 19 87,370 (293) 87,076 
Interest expenses 15,611 278 15,890 0 15,890 (269) 15,620 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated  
subsidiaries and associated companies 246  — 246  — 246 (24) 221 
Extraordinary profit 1,597  — 1,597  — 1,597  — 1,597 

Gains on disposal of noncurrent assets (1,597)  — (1,597)  — (1,597)  — (1,597)
Extraordinary loss 1,012  — 1,012 0 1,013  — 1,013 

Losses on disposal of noncurrent assets (603)  — (603) (0) (603)  — (603)
Impairment losses on of fixed assets (409)  — (409)  — (409)  — (409)

Tax 9,566 433 9,999 972 10,972 (3) 10,968 
Investment of unconsolidated subsidiaries 
and associated companies 595  — 595  — 595  — 595 
Increase of property and equipment and  
intangible assets 4,799 832 5,631 67 5,698 109 5,807 

Millions of yen
Year ended or as of March 31, 2024 Banking Lease Sub total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated
Ordinary income generated from businesses with

External customers � ¥� 166,040 ¥29,256 ¥� 195,296 ¥� 5,059 ¥� 200,356 ¥� — ¥� 200,356 
Internal units � 861 392 1,253 1,651 2,905 (2,905)  — 

166,902 29,648 196,550 6,711 203,262 (2,905) 200,356 
Segment profit � 39,348 1,226 40,575 3,275 43,850 (61) 43,788 
Segment assets � 10,797,074 87,562 10,884,637 52,386 10,937,023 (118,805) 10,818,218 
Segment liabilities � 10,258,142 71,092 10,329,235 23,104 10,352,340 (107,217) 10,245,122 
Others

Depreciation 5,320 691 6,012 64 6,076 117 6,193 
Interest and dividend income 106,109 19 106,128 15 106,143 (335) 105,807 
Interest expenses 39,770 320 40,090  — 40,090 (311) 39,779 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated  
subsidiaries and associated companies 166  — 166  — 166 (24) 141 
Extraordinary profit 210  — 210  — 210  — 210 

Gains on disposal of noncurrent assets (210)  — (210)  — (210)  — (210)
Extraordinary loss 1,013  — 1,013 2 1,016  — 1,016 

Losses on disposal of noncurrent assets (226)  — (226) (2) (228)  — (228)
Impairment losses on of fixed assets (787)  — (787)  — (787)  — (787)

Tax 10,232 531 10,763 1,093 11,857 (1) 11,856 
Investment of unconsolidated subsidiaries 
and associated companies 1,477  — 1,477  — 1,477  — 1,477 
Increase of property and equipment and  
intangible assets 6,142 825 6,967 32 7,000 288 7,289 
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
Year ended or as of March 31, 2024 Banking Lease Sub total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated
Ordinary income generated from businesses with

External customers � $� 1,096,627 $193,227 $� 1,289,854 $� 33,416 $� 1,323,271 $� —   $� 1,323,271 
Internal units � 5,692 2,589 8,281 10,908 19,190 (19,190)  — 

1,102,320 195,816 1,298,136 44,325 1,342,462 (19,190) 1,323,271 
Segment profit � 259,882 8,103 267,985 21,630 289,615 (408) 289,207 
Segment assets � 71,310,184 578,314 71,888,498 345,988 72,234,487 (784,660) 71,449,826 
Segment liabilities � 67,750,761 469,536 68,220,297 152,598 68,372,896 (708,127) 67,664,768 
Others

Depreciation 35,139 4,567 39,707 422 40,130 773 40,903 
Interest and dividend income 700,807 126 700,934 100 701,034 (2,217) 698,817 
Interest expenses 262,665 2,115 264,780  — 264,780 (2,055) 262,725 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated  
subsidiaries and associated companies 1,097  — 1,097  — 1,097 (162) 934 
Extraordinary profit 1,388  — 1,388  — 1,388  — 1,388 

Gains on disposal of noncurrent assets (1,388)  — (1,388)  — (1,388)  — (1,388)
Extraordinary loss 6,696  — 6,696 16 6,712  — 6,712 

Losses on disposal of noncurrent assets (1,496)  — (1,496) (14) (1,510)  — (1,510)
Impairment losses on of fixed assets (5,200)  — (5,200)  — (5,200)  — (5,200)

Tax 67,580 3,510 71,090 7,225 78,316 (6) 78,309 
Investment of unconsolidated subsidiaries 
and associated companies 9,757  — 9,757  — 9,757  — 9,757 
Increase of property and equipment and  
intangible assets 40,566 5,450 46,016 216 46,233 1,908 48,141 

(Notes)
1. Total income is presented in lieu of sales of companies in other industries.
2. �“Others” include business segments not included in the reportable segments, such as the delivery of goods, etc., the maintenance of 

ATMs and operations of securities and guarantees.
3. Adjustments are as follows:

(1) Adjustment for segment profit of ¥(61) million (U.S.$(408) thousand) was elimination of intersegment transactions.
(2) Adjustment for segment assets of ¥(118,805) million (U.S.$(784,660)thousand) was elimination of intersegment transactions.
(3) Adjustment for segment liabilities of ¥(107,217) million (U.S.$(708,127)thousand) was elimination of intersegment transactions.
(4) �Adjustment for depreciation of ¥117 million (U.S.$773 thousand) was elimination of intersegment transactions and the 

depreciation related to lease investment assets classified as “property and equipment” and “intangible assets” on a consolidated 
basis.

(5) �Adjustment for interest and dividend income of ¥(335) million (U.S.$(2,217)thousand), adjustment for interest expenses of ¥(311) 
million (U.S.$(2,055)thousand), adjustment for equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies of 
¥(24) million (U.S.$(162) thousand) and adjustment for tax of ¥(1) million (U.S.$(6)thousand) were elimination of intersegment 
transactions.

(6) �Adjustment for increase of tangible fixed asset and intangible fixed asset of ¥288 million (U.S.$1,908 thousand)  were transferred 
from lease investment assets.

4. Segment profit was adjusted with reference to ordinary profit as stated in the consolidated statements of income.

b. Segment information about services

Millions of yen
Year ended or as of March 31, 2023 Lending Investment Lease Others Total

Ordinary income generated from businesses with 
external customers ¥� 60,160 ¥� 58,179 ¥� 29,386 ¥� 28,863 ¥� 176,589 

Millions of yen
Year ended or as of March 31, 2024 Lending Investment Lease Others Total

Ordinary income generated from businesses with 
external customers ¥� 71,911 ¥� 69,197 ¥� 29,256 ¥� 29,990 ¥� 200,356 

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Year ended or as of March 31, 2024 Lending Investment Lease Others Total

Ordinary income generated from businesses with 
external customers $� 474,945 $� 457,021 $� 193,227 $� 198,077 $�1,323,271 

c. Segment information about geographical area	
1.Ordinary income
The domestic share of ordinary income from external customers exceeds 90% of ordinary income in the consolidated statement of 
income, thus information has not been disclosed.
2.Tangible fixed assets
The domestic share of tangible fixed assets exceeds 90% of tangible fixed assets in the consolidated balance sheet, thus information has 
not been disclosed.

d. Segment information about major customers
Ordinary income from a specific customer does not exceed 10% of ordinary income in the consolidated statements of income, thus 
information has not been disclosed.
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19.  Related parties	

Transactions between the Bank and its executives or major (individual) shareholders, etc. in the year ended March 31, 2023 were as 
follows:

Type Name

Description of 
business or 
occupation

Voting rights 
ownership 

ratio

Relationship 
with related 

party Transaction detail

Transaction amount
Account 

name

Balance at 
the end of 
the year

Millions of 
yen

Thousands 
of dollars

Executive Nobuyuki 
Horie

Chairman of 
the Bank

Directly owns 
0.0% of the 

Bank’s voting 
rights

—

Capital 
contribution in 

kind of monetary 
remuneration 
claims (Note)

¥11 $82 — —

Executive Akihiko 
Fukai

President of 
the Bank

Directly owns
0.0% of the

Bank’s voting
rights

—

Capital 
contribution in 

kind of monetary 
remuneration 
claims (Note)

15 112 — —

(Note)
Capital contribution in kind of monetary remuneration claims based on the restricted stock remuneration plan and Performance Share 
remuneration.

Transactions between the Bank and its executives or major (individual) shareholders, etc. in the year ended March 31, 2024 were as 
follows:

Type Name

Description of 
business or 
occupation

Voting rights 
ownership 

ratio

Relationship 
with related 

party Transaction detail

Transaction amount
Account 

name

Balance at 
the end of 
the year

Millions of 
yen

Thousands 
of dollars

Executive Nobuyuki 
Horie

Chairman of 
the Bank

Directly owns 
0.0% of the 

Bank’s voting 
rights

—

Capital 
contribution in 

kind of monetary 
remuneration 
claims (Note)

¥11 $73 — —

Executive Akihiko 
Fukai

President of 
the Bank

Directly owns
0.0% of the

Bank’s voting
rights

—

Capital 
contribution in 

kind of monetary 
remuneration 
claims (Note)

15 100 — —

(Note)
Capital contribution in kind of monetary remuneration claims based on the restricted stock remuneration plan and Performance Share 
remuneration.

20.  Earnings per Share	

Yen U.S. Dollars
2023 2024 2024

Net Assets per Share of Common Stock ¥1,268.77 ¥1,460.16 $9.64 
Earnings per Share of Common Stock 68.19 78.43 0.51 

1. Basis on calculating Net Assets per share was follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

2023 2024 2024
Consolidated Net Assets ¥515,810 ¥573,095 $3,785,057
Consolidated Net Assets Attributable to Common Shareholders 515,810 573,095 3,785,057

Thousands of Stocks
2023 2024

Number of Shares of Common Stock. Used for Calculating Net 
Assets per Share 406,543 392,488
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2. Basis of calculating Earnings per share was follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of Stocks Yen U.S. Dollars

For the year ended March 31,2023 Net income
Weighted average 

stocks EPS
Earnings available to Common Shareholders ¥27,933 409,628 ¥68.19 $0.51

Millions of yen Thousands of Stocks Yen U.S. Dollars

For the year ended March 31,2024 Net income
Weighted average 

stocks EPS
Earnings available to Common Shareholders ¥31,125 396,851 ¥78.43 $0.51

3. Diluted earnings per share of common stock for the fiscal year ended March 31,2023 and 2024 are omitted as there are no dilutive shares, etc.

21.  Changes in Net Assets

a. Information on type and number of shares issued and treasury shares
Type and number of shares issued and treasury shares in the year ended March 31, 2023 were as follows:

in thousands

Number of shares as of 
the previous fiscal 

year-end

Number of shares 
increased during the 
accounting period

Number of shares 
decreased during the 

accounting period
Number of shares as of 

the fiscal year-end

Shares issued 
Common stock � 425,888 — — 425,888

Total � 425,888 — — 425,888

Treasury shares
Common stock � 15,224 4,368 248 19,344

Total � 15,224 4,368 248 19,344

Type and number of shares issued and treasury shares in the year ended March 31, 2024 were as follows:

in thousands

Number of shares as of 
the previous fiscal 

year-end

Number of shares 
increased during the 
accounting period

Number of shares 
decreased during the 

accounting period
Number of shares as of 

the fiscal year-end

Shares issued 
Common stock � 425,888 — — 425,888

Total � 425,888 — — 425,888

Treasury shares
Common stock � 19,344 14,237 182 33,399

Total � 19,344 14,237 182 33,399

b. Information on dividends
The following dividends were paid in the year ended March 31, 2023:

Amount of dividends Cash dividends per share
Date of  

resolution
Type of 
shares Millions of yen Yen

Record  
date

Effective  
date

Annual meeting of 
shareholders held 
on June 24, 2022 Common stock ¥2,874 ¥7.0

March 31,  
2022

June 27, 
2022

Directors' meeting 
held on November 
9, 2022 Common stock ¥3,287 ¥8.0

September 30, 
2022

November 30, 
2022
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The following dividends were paid in the year ended March 31, 2024:

Amount of dividends Cash dividends per share
Date of  

resolution
Type of 
shares

Millions  
of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars Yen U.S. dollars

Record  
date

Effective  
date

Annual meeting of 
shareholders held 
on June 27, 2023 Common stock ¥4,065 $26,850 ¥10.0 $0.07

March 31,  
2023

June 28, 
2023

Directors' meeting 
held on November 
8, 2023 Common stock ¥3,967 $26,206 ¥10.0 $0.07

September 30, 
2023

November 30, 
2023

Dividends whose record date is attributable to the year ended March 31, 2023 but which are effective after March 31,2023

Amount of dividends Cash dividends per share
Date of  

resolution
Type of 
shares Millions of yen

Source of 
dividends Yen

Record 
date

Effective 
date

Annual meeting of 
shareholders held 
on June 27, 2023 Common stock ¥4,065

Retained 
earnings ¥10.0

March 31, 
2023

June 28, 
2023

Dividends whose record date is attributable to the year ended March 31, 2024 but which are effective after March 31, 2024

Amount of dividends Cash dividends per share
Date of  

resolution
Type of 
shares

Millions of 
yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

Source of 
dividends Yen U.S. dollars

Record 
date

Effective 
date

Annual meeting of 
shareholders held 
on June 20, 2024 Common stock ¥4,709 $31,106

Retained 
earnings ¥12.0 $0.08

March 31, 
2024

June 21, 
2024

22.  Stock Options

Not applicable. 

23.  Corporate bonds

Corporate bonds include subordinated corporate bonds in the amount of ¥50,000 million and ¥50,000 million (U.S.$330,229 thousand) 
as of March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

24.  Subsequent events

Purchase of treasury shares

The Bank decided at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 9, 2024 on matters pertaining to the purchase of treasury shares in 
accordance with Article 156 of the Companies Act as applied mutatis mutandis pursuant to Article 165, Paragraph 3 of the said Act, and 
carried out transactions as follows.

1 Details of the resolution
(1) Reason for purchase of treasury shares 

To improve shareholder returns through the execution of flexible capital policies and improvement of capital efficiency
(2) Type of shares to be purchased: common stock
(3) Total number of shares to be purchased: 6,500,000 shares
(4) Total amount of shares to be purchased: Up to ¥5,000 million
(5) Purchase period: May 10 to June 14, 2024
(6) Purchase method: Market purchase on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

(Purchase through Off-Auction Own Share Repurchase Trading (ToSTNeT-3) and market purchase under discretionary account 
trading agreements for share repurchases)

2 Results of the purchase of treasury shares
(1) Type of shares purchased: Common stock
(2) Total number of shares purchased: 4,794,300 shares
(3) Total amount of shares purchased: ¥4,999 million
(4) Purchase period: May 10 to June 14, 2024 
(5) Purchase method: Market purchase on the Tokyo Stock Exchange 

(Purchase through Off-Auction Own Share Repurchase Trading (ToSTNeT-3) and market purchase under discretionary account 
trading agreements for share repurchases) 
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Purchase of treasury shares and Cancellation of treasury shares

The Bank decided at the Board of Directors meeting held on August 28, 2024 on matters pertaining to the purchase of treasury shares in 
accordance with Article 156 of the Companies Act as applied mutatis mutandis pursuant to Article 165, Paragraph 3 of the said Act, and 
cancellation of its treasury shares under its Article 178. The details are as follows.

1 Details of the Purchase
(1) Reason for purchase of treasury shares

To improve shareholder returns through the execution of flexible capital policies and improvement of capital efficiency.
(2) Type of shares to be purchased: common stock
(3) Total number of shares to be purchased: Up to 7,000,000 shares
(4) Total amount of shares to be purchased: Up to ¥5,000 million
(5) Purchase period: August 29 to October 18, 2024
(6) Purchase method: Market purchase on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

2 Details of the Cancellation
(1) Type of shares to be cancelled: common stock
(2) �Total number of shares to be cancelled: 10,000,000 shares (2.57% of total number of issued shares before being cancelled (excluding 

treasury shares))
(3) Date of cancellation: October 31, 2024 (Planned)
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Report of Independent Auditors
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